
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD

19 June 2018

To:  The Town Mayor and all Members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Leighton-Linslade Town Council to 
be held on Monday, 25 June 2018 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD.

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

Prayers will be said at 1920 hours

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

3.  TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

4.  LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS 

5.  QUESTIONS 

(a) To receive questions and statements from members of the public as 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 25 June 2018

provided for in Standing Order Nos.1 (f) and 1 (h)  

(b) To receive questions from Councillors as provided for in Standing Order 
No.8 (a) , provided three clear days’ notice of the question has been given 
to the person to whom it is addressed.

6.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Town Council 
meeting held on 21 May 2018 (attached).

7.  COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 9 - 84)

To receive the Minutes of Committee meetings (attached) and to consider any 
recommendations contained therein:

a) Planning & Transport Committee 30 May 2018
b) Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 June 2018
Recommendation at Minute Reference 123/GE

c) Partnership Committee (to follow) 7 June 2018 
d) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 13 June 2018 
e) Policy & Finance Committee (to follow) 18 June 2018
Recommendations at 367/PF, 370/PF, 372/PF, 373/PF, 375/PF

f) Planning & Transport Committee (to follow) 20 June 2018

8.  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017-2018 AND ACCOUNTING 
STATEMENTS 2017-2018 (Pages 85 - 88)

Further to the recommendation made by the Policy and Finance Committee on 
18 June 2018, to:

(a) approve and sign Section 1 – Annual governance statement 2017/18 
(attached)

(b) approve and sign Section 2 -  Accounting statements 2017/18  
(attached)

9.  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (Pages 89 - 98)

Further to the recommendation made by the Policy and Finance Committee on 
18 June 2018, to approve the Statement of Accounts 2017-2018 (which are not 
subject to audit) (attached).

10.  QUARTERLY UPDATE 

To receive a verbal presentation from the Town Clerk regarding achievements 
within the last three months (April – June 2018).



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 25 June 2018

11.  REPORT FROM CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCILLORS 

To receive a verbal update from Central Bedfordshire Councillors on matters 
affecting the parish (if applicable).

12.  APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 

To consider any changes to appointments and to receive verbal reports from 
Councillors, where applicable.  

13.  APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES 

To consider any changes to appointments, if applicable.  

14.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC (Pages 99 - 102)

The Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following resolution 
should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the public 
interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960, the 
public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of the business 
about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of detailed discussion regarding:   

(i) Town Council accommodation

15.  TOWN COUNCIL ACCOMMODATION 



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, 21 MAY 2018 AT 7.30 PM

Present:   Councillors S Rahman (Chair)
C Palmer (Vice-Chair)
R Berry
D Bowater
A Brandham
C Chambers
K Cursons
S Cursons
A Dodwell
K Ferguson
M Freeman
S Jones
F Kharawala
T Morris
C Perham
D Perham
G Perham
E Wallace

Also in attendance: V Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic 
Services
I Haynes, Head of Grounds and Environmental 
Services
M Jahn, Committee Officer
M Saccoccio, Town Clerk
S Sandiford, Head of Democratic and Central 
Services
J Murphy, Administration officer

Members of the Public: 19

227 ELECTION OF CHAIR (TOWN MAYOR)

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor C Palmer be appointed Chair 
of the Town Council for the municipal year 2018-2019.  There were no further 
nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor C Palmer Chair of Leighton-Linslade 
Town council (Town Mayor) for the municipal year 2018-2019.

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 98

Councillor Palmer took the Chair.

228 DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Councillor C Palmer made the statutory declaration of acceptance of office of 
Town Mayor for the municipal year 2018-2019, witnessed by the Town Clerk. 
Councillor C Palmer was duly invested with the Chain and badge of Office.

229 TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councillor C Palmer thanked the Council for appointing him Town Mayor and 
advised the Council that his chosen charities for the year would include 
Macmillan Cancer Bedfordshire, Kids Out and Autism Bedfordshire.

230 VOTE OF THANKS TO RETIRING MAYOR

Councillor E Wallace spoke to give a vote of thanks to retiring Town Mayor, 
Councillor S Rahman.  It was recognised that Councillor Rahman had 
demonstrated positivity and enthusiasm, working tirelessly raising money for 
his charities and attending 133 events over the year.  As well as promoting 
the parish of Leighton-Linslade locally, Councillor Rahman had also visited 
the twin towns of Titisee-Neustadt and Coulommiers to represent the town at 
their Festivals.

231 RESPONSE BY RETIRING MAYOR

Councillor Rahman thanked the Council for its support during his Mayoral 
year and also expressed thanks to many others including Town Council staff, 
Councillors and his chosen charities, who had given their time to support the 
fundraising events during the year.  Over £8,000 had been raised during the 
year and cheques were presented by Councillor Rahman to representatives 
of Autism Bedfordshire, Keech Hospice, St Johns Hospice and the Leighton-
Linslade Homeless Service. A cheque would also be sent to the charity 
Aquarius who were not able to send a representative to the meeting.

232 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR (DEPUTY TOWN MAYOR)

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor D Bowater be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Town Council for the municipal year 2018-2019.  

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor D Bowater Vice Chair (Deputy Mayor) 
of the Leighton-Linslade Town Council for the municipal year 2018-
2019.

233 DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Councillor D Bowater made the statutory declaration of acceptance of office 
of Deputy Town Mayor for the municipal year 2018-2019, witnessed by the 
Town Clerk.  

Page 2



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 99

Councillor Bowater was duly invested with the Chain and Badge of Office.

234 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from 
Councillors S Cotter and B Spurr.

235 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, and the nature of those 
interests, that they might have in any of the items under consideration at the 
meeting.

No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.

236 COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Council received the draft minutes of the previous Council meeting held on 
30 April 2018. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 30 April 
2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed accordingly.

237 LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor E Wallace be appointed 
Leader of the Town Council for the municipal year 2018-2019.  There were 
no further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor E Wallace Leader of the Town Council 
for the municipal year 2018-2019.

238 GROUP LEADERS

It was noted that Councillor J M Freeman was the sole independent 
Councillor on the Town Council.

239 GROUP LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councillor E Wallace thanked Council for appointing him as Leader for a third 
year.  The Leader expressed his thanks to both Councillor S Rahman for his 
hard work as Mayor during 2017-2018 and to Councillor C Palmer for 
agreeing to take the role of Mayor 2018-2019.  Councillor Wallace expressed 
thanks to the Town Council staff for providing a value for money service and 
continued excellent standards, keeping the precept the same for the sixth 
year in a row whilst also delivering new initiatives such as the Youth Promise 
Scheme, in which £150,000 had been set aside for enhanced provision of 
services for young people aged 11-19.   

Page 3



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 100

Four grants had been approved to date, for the Hockey Club, Tennis Club, 
CHUMS and to support a group providing mental health support within 
schools.

The focus for the next year would be continued improvement of the 
recreational parks within the town to build on improvements made this year 
and also how consultations with residents would be conducted so direct 
feedback could be gained and residents’ views considered.

240 QUESTIONS

(a) A question was raised regarding parking outside Cedars School at 
drop off/pick up time each day.  The sequence of the lights in Mentmore 
Road and the parking caused long delays which needed to be addressed.  
The Chair replied that all highways related matters were the responsibility of 
the local authority but that the Town Council would raise this matter with 
Central Bedfordshire Council.

(b) No questions had been received from Councillors.

241 COMMITTEE STRUCTURE, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND SCHEME OF 
DELEGATION

(a)  Council received the existing Committee structure and was asked to 
consider any changes for the municipal year 2018-2019.  A change of name 
was proposed for the Police Liaison Sub Committee to change to the 
Community Safety Sub Committee

RESOLVED that the Police Liaison Sub Committee be renamed the 
Community Safety Sub Committee and remaining Committee Structure 
to remain the same.

(b)  Council received a list of proposed appointments to Committees and 
Sub Committees

RESOLVED to appoint Committee and Sub-Committee members for 
2018-2019 as follows:

Name of Committee Conservative Independent
Policy & Finance R Berry

S Cotter
K Cursons
S Cursons
A Dodwell
K Ferguson
S Jones
F Kharawala
C Palmer
G Perham
E Wallace 

J M Freeman

Page 4



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 101

Planning & Transport A Brandham
S Cotter
S Cursons
J Davies
A Dodwell
D Perham
B Spurr

J M Freeman

Cultural & Economic 
Services

D Bowater
A Brandham
C Chambers
S Cotter
F Kharawala
G Perham
S Rahman

J M Freeman

Grounds & 
Environmental 
Services

R Berry
A Brandham
S Cursons
A Dodwell
S Jones
T Morris
C Perham
B Spurr

Grants & Awards 
Sub Committee

A Brandham
K Cursons
S Cursons
C Perham
S Rahman

J M Freeman

Personnel Sub 
Committee

D Bowater
K Cursons
K Ferguson
B Spurr
E Wallace

J M Freeman

Community Safety 
Sub Committee

R Berry
D Bowater
C Chambers
A Dodwell
T Morris
C Perham
G Perham
B Spurr

Market Sub 
Committee

D Bowater
S Cotter
K Cursons
F Kharawala
T Morris

J M Freeman

The members of the four standing Committees then proposed, seconded and 
voted on appointments of Chairs for those Committees.

Page 5



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 102

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor E Wallace Chair of Policy and Finance 
committee for the municipal year 2018-2019

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Jones Chair of the Grounds and 
Environmental Services Committee for the municipal year 2018-2019.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Cotter Chair of the Cultural and 
Economic Services Committee for the municipal year 2018-2019.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor A Dodwell Chair of the Planning & 
Transport Committee for the municipal year 2018-2019.

(c) Council received the Terms of Reference for the four Town Council 
standing Committees and was asked to consider any amendments.

RESOLVED that no changes be made to the Terms of Reference for the 
four Town Council standing committees.

(d) Council received the existing Scheme of Delegation and was asked to 
consider any amendments.

RESOLVED that no changes be made to the Scheme of Delegation.

(e) Council received the Calendar of Meetings for 2018-2019, as agreed at 
the previous meeting.

RESOLVED to approve the Calendar of Meetings for 2018-2019.

242 PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE

Council received the current Terms of Reference for the Leighton-Linslade 
Partnership Committee, as endorsed by both the Town Council and Central 
Bedfordshire Council, and was asked to appoint five Town councillors to the 
Committee for 2018-2019.  Five Central Bedfordshire Councillors had been 
appointed at the Central Bedfordshire Council annual meeting.  

It was noted that a review of all Central Bedfordshire Joint Committees had 
been in progress for some time and that the Terms of Reference were due to 
be revised for approval by both councils.

RESOLVED to appoint Town Councillors Jones, Kharawala, Morris, 
Palmer and Wallace to the Partnership Committee for 2018-2019.

243 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

It was agreed that existing appointments remain in place for the time being but 
these could be reviewed at future Council meetings if necessary. 

RESOLVED to appoint Town Councillors as representatives to outside 
bodies as outlined below:

Page 6



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 103

Organisation Town Council Representative(s) 

Arts Forum Gordon Perham

Buzzer Bus (Dial a Ride) Ltd Mark Freeman

Carnival Committee Carol Chambers

Citizens’ Advice Bureau Sarah Cursons, Karen Cursons,
Farzana Kharawala

Cruse Bereavement Care 
Bedfordshire

Carol Perham

Friends of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom Gordon Perham

Home-Start Central Bedfordshire Ken Ferguson

LB First Ewan Wallace, Farzana Kharwala

LB Narrow Gauge Railway Amanda Dodwell, Ray Berry

Leighton-Linslade Senior Citizens 
Association (“LINK”)

Farzana Kharwala, Carol Chambers

Macmillan Cancer Support (Leighton-
Linslade Fundraising Group)

Ray Berry

Meadow Way Community Association Amanda Dodwell

Music Centre Partnership Steve Jones, Gordon Perham

Music Education Hub Steering 
Committee

Steve Jones

National Association of Local 
Councils/Bedfordshire Association of 
Town and Parish Councils

Tony Morris

Ouzel Valley Park Steering Group Tony Morris, Clive Palmer, Adan 
Brandham

People, Projects, Partnerships (P3) Clive Palmer

Rushmere Parishes Group Clive Palmer, Amanda Dodwell, 
Alan Brandham

Sandpit Project Tony Morris, Alan Brandham

Sports Council David Perham, Sarah Cursons, Alan 
Brandham

The Greensand Trust Tony Morris

Town Twinning Forum Clive Palmer, Carol Perham, 
Gordon Perham

Voluntary & Community Action South 
Bedfordshire

Carol Perham

Page 7



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 21 May 2018

Page 104

The meeting closed at 8.15 pm. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 21 MAY 2018. 

Chair                          25 JUNE 2018  

Page 8



Page 168

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 30 MAY 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman
A Brandham
S Cotter
S Cursons
A Dodwell (Chair)
D Perham
B Spurr
R Berry (substituting for Cllr J Davies)

          Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Central and Democratic 
Services)

Members of the public:     0

358/P APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor S Cursons be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Committee for 2018-2019. There were no further nominations. 

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Cursons Vice Chair of the Planning and 
Transport Committee for the municipal year 2018-2019. 

359/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor J Davies, substituted 
by Councillor R Berry. 

360/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  

Councillor R Berry declared that as a member of the Central Bedfordshire 
Development Management Committee, he would not vote on planning 
applications.  

361/P PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no questions from members of the public. 

362/P MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held on 9 May 2018.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Planning and Transport Committee 9 MAY 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 169

It was unanimously agreed that thanks should have been formally expressed at 
the meeting to the outgoing Committee Chair, Councillor Clive Palmer, for all his 
hard work on planning and transport related matters and his good chairmanship 
of the Committee. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 9 May 2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly.

363/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee reviewed applications received up until 18 May 2018. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/01696/RM (Brickyard 
Quarry, Grovebury Road), subject to Central Bedfordshire parking 
standards being met, but that the Town Council would make the following 
comments: 
- That the Town Council is keen to see adequate and timely infrastructure 

being provided as part of the development to the south of the town
- That the Town Council would seek active and early involvement in S.106 

discussions, particularly in respect of the provision of play equipment 
and open space contributions for the development

- That the Town Council would hope that provision has been made within 
S.106 agreements for the development to the south of the town for 
potential expansion of the Leighton bypass to become dual carriageway 
in future

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/01759 (35A Weston 
Avenue) but that the Town Council would make the following comments:
- That the Town Council expressed concerns that by virtue of its lack of 

on-site car parking provision the proposed development would require 
vehicles to be parked on the carriageway to the detriment of highway 
safety given its corner location.   

Discussion took place regarding the two applications for land at Clipstone Park 
and it was noted that both parcels of land were located within the parish of 
Eggington rather than Leighton-Linslade. However, it was agreed that residents 
would be looking to the town for provision of services and therefore the Town 
Council would make the following comments in respect of these applications.

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/01758/RM (Land at 
Clipstone Park) but that the Town Council would make the following 
comments: 
- That given the proximity to Leighton-Linslade, the Town Council would 

expect that provision is made within the S.106 agreement for a 
contribution to the town centre/public realm enhancements

- That construction traffic should access the site via the bypass/A5, not 
through the town

Page 10



Planning and Transport Committee 9 MAY 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 170

- That consideration be given to installing a pedestrian crossing on 
Hockliffe Road in order for residents to cross to the community centre

- That proposed open spaces should include provision of play equipment 
for young families

- That the Town Council would urge delivery of the eastern link road as 
early as possible 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/01656/RM (Land at 
Clipstone Park) but that the Town Council would make the following 
comments: 
- That given the proximity to Leighton-Linslade, the Town Council would 

expect that provision is made within the S.106 agreement for a 
contribution to the town centre/public realm enhancements

- That construction traffic should access the site via the bypass/A5, not 
through the town

- That consideration be given to installing a pedestrian crossing on 
Hockliffe Road in order for residents to cross to the community centre

- That proposed open spaces should include provision of play equipment 
for young families

- That the Town Council would urge delivery of the eastern link road as 
early as possible 

RESOLVED to recommend that no objection be made to the following 
applications:

1. CB/18/01614 11 ATTERBURY AVENUE
2. CB/18/01514 3A PEACOCK ALLEY
3. CB/18/01612/LB 2 MARKET SQUARE
4. CB/18/01188/LB 17 HOCKCLIFFE STREET
5. CB/18/01383 5 SOUTHCOTT VILLAGE, LINSLADE
6. CB/18/01623 2 GREENHILL
7. CB/18/01382 66 ORION WAY
8. CB/18/01417 57 STEPPINGSTONE PLACE
9. CB/18/01391 11 CHURCH ROAD, LINSLADE
10. CB/18/01646 32 COTEFIELD DRIVE
11. CB/18/01657 17 CUTLERS WAY
12. CB/18/01708 34 CLARIDGE CLOSE
13. CB/18/01664 129 BIDEFORD GREEN, LINSLADE
14. CB/18/01464 3 HEATH COURT
15. CB/18/01682 57 OLD ROAD, LINSLADE

RESOLVED to note the following applications for works to trees: 

1. CB/TRE/18/00145 33 REDWOOD GLADE

364/P TRANSPORT MATTERS

The Committee noted that Buzzer Bus (Dial a Ride) Ltd had been awarded a 
three year contract for continuation of its local services. This was welcomed as 
good news for residents. 

Page 11



Planning and Transport Committee 9 MAY 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 171

Discussion took place regarding potholes on the highways and the Committee 
was advised that spray injection patching was scheduled to take place in the 
following areas: East Street, Princes Court, Grovebury Road, Bideford Green, 
West Street service road, East Street and Duncombe Drive. It was anticipated 
that works would take place in the first half of June but this would be dependent 
upon weather conditions.  It was suggested that Soulbury Road should also be 
given consideration for patching. 

365/P      INFORMATION ITEMS

No information items had been received. 

The meeting closed at 2022 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 30 MAY 2018.

Chair                      20 JUNE 2018 

Page 12



                                                                                                                                      Page 39

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

GROUNDS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

MONDAY 4 JUNE 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: R Berry
A Dodwell
C Perham   
S Jones – in the Chair

Also in attendance:  I Haynes (Head of Grounds & Environmental 
Services)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic & Central 
Services)

                    Members of the public: 0
Members of the press:  0

The Chair welcomed those present to the meeting and advised that agenda item 14 
had been withdrawn. 

111/GE    APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor R Berry be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Committee for 2018-2019. There were no further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor R Berry Vice Chair of the Committee 
for the municipal year 2018-2019. 

112/GE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors A Brandham, S 
Cursons, B Spurr and T Morris, as well as from the Town Clerk and the Senior 
Centre Co-ordinator at Astral Park. 

 
113/GE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. No declarations were made and no dispensations had been 
requested. 

114/GE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

No members of the public were present.

115/GE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Grounds and Environmental 
Services Committee meeting held on 5 March 2018.

Page 13



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 JUNE 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 40

Minute reference 103/GE: it was noted that proposals regarding fees and 
charges at Astral Park would be brought back to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Grounds and 
Environmental Services Committee held on 5 March 2018 be approved 
as a correct record and were signed accordingly.

116/GE ASTRAL PARK SPORTS AND COMMUNITY CENTRE

The Committee received an update report in respect of the Astral Park Sports 
and Community Centre, including events, catering, marketing, football and 
school holiday activities. It was noted that income was on target for the year 
to date and although expenditure was slightly higher, this was due to paying 
some contracts early in the financial year. 

Concerns raised by residents to Councillors regarding irresponsible dog 
ownership were flagged up for information. It was suggested that free, 
promotional dog waste bags be re-ordered for distribution from both Astral 
Park and the White House and that signage/social media should encourage 
responsible dog ownership. 

RESOLVED to note the information. 

117/GE COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN 

The Committee received the work plan for the municipal year 2018-2019. 

RESOLVED to note the work plan. 

118/GE LINSLADE RECREATION IMPROVEMENT

The Committee received a verbal update on the progress of the 
improvements at Linslade Recreation Ground. The play area refurbishment 
was complete and had been well received in the main. Some residents had 
expressed disappointment about the removal of a larger piece of play 
equipment but it was noted that the refurbishment of the junior play area at 
Mentmore Park, undertaken the previous year, provided suitable equipment 
in the locality for the older age group. Given its relatively small size, the play 
area at Linslade Recreation Ground was deemed more suitable for younger 
children. 

Green Flag judging had been undertaken and the outcome was awaited. 
Officers had met with the Conservation Officer regarding improved entrance 
signage to the park. As Waterloo Road was the historic main pedestrian 
entrance to the park, any signage erected at the Station Approach entrance 
would need to be in addition to and subservient to that on Waterloo Road. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

Page 14



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 JUNE 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 41

119/GE REVIEW OF THE TREE MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Committee received a report reviewing the Tree Management Policy, 
which had been adopted on 2 November 2015. Other than some minor 
amendments to reflect revised legislation and guidance, the policy was 
deemed to still be fit for purpose, providing a clear, transparent and 
professional method for managing the Town Council’s tree stock. 

RECOMMENDED to the Policy and Finance Committee to consider 
recommending to Council re-endorsement of the Tree Management 
Policy, for the period 2018-2021. 

120/GE “FRIENDS” GROUPS

The Committee received a verbal update regarding the potential setting up of 
“Friends” groups of volunteers for the parks. Previous attempts to attract 
interest from the public had not generated much response, but further 
publicity would be issued to try to generate more interest. It was noted that 
the Council was working closely with the volunteers from the local South 
Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth group and from the Friends of Leighton-
Linslade in Bloom. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

121/GE PARSON’S CLOSE RECREATION GROUND

The Committee received and considered a report regarding the proposed 
expansion of the catering offer within Parson’s Close Recreation Ground.  
The proposal was in reflection of the developments within the park in recent 
years, which had increased both footfall and dwell time. The increased footfall 
had been evidenced by the footfall counters installed in 2017. 

It was proposed that expressions of interest be sought, with a view to 
providing a quality offering in the park, to potentially begin trading in the 
Spring of 2019. 

RESOLVED to:

1.1 Endorse the commencement of an expressions of interest exercise 
and thereafter begin a competitive tendering process with the 
expectation that the successful operator would commence their 
operation in Spring 2019.

1.2 Delegate to the Town Clerk and the Chair of Grounds and 
Environmental Services the authority to review the tenders received 
and to return a recommendation to this Committee in respect of a 
preferred operator.

1.3 That the successful operator be afforded a 5 year agreement with the 
potential that this be extended by a further 12 months if both parties 
agree to this.

Page 15



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 JUNE 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 42

1.4 That the tender process offer tenderers the opportunity to propose 
a financial model that is considered to be fair and appropriate for a 
facility such as this thereby affording a fair outcome to both parties.

1.5 That any planning permissions required will be applied for in due 
course.

122/GE ENHANCEMENTS TO THE CEMETERY SERVICE

The Committee received and considered  a report regarding a proposed 
change of procedure in respect of transfers of grave ownership, whereby the 
Town Council would only carry out transfers upon receipt of specific forms 
supported by a solicitor’s letter. This would not only increase internal 
efficiencies but would streamline the process for families during a difficult 
time. Furthermore, recognising the introduction of the 2018 Data Protection 
Act and General Data Protection Regulation, the change would ensure the 
Town Council would no longer need to receive, process and retain personal 
and confidential documents. 

In light of the much streamlined process, it was proposed that the current fee 
for transfers be significantly reduced. 

RESOLVED:

- to note the report.
- to approve that the Town Council only transfer Grave ownership when 
supported by the required specific forms as well as a solicitor’s letter. 
- to reduce the fee for undertaking a transfer from the current fee of 
£106.48 to £26.62. 

123/GE    EQUIPMENT FOR GROUNDS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

 The Committee received and considered a report regarding equipment for   
Grounds and Environmental Services. It was proposed that an existing vehicle 
be replaced with a newer model and that an additional vehicle be purchased, 
to increase capacity for both internal and external service delivery. 

RESOLVED:
- to note the report.
- to endorse the purchase of 2 x Isuzu D-Max (Double Cab) vehicles with 
a maximum combined value of £42,000.
- to endorse the sale or disposal of 1 x Citroen Berlingo (Y699 GNN).

RECOMMENDED to Council that the expenditure for purchasing two 
vehicles be funded by half Earmarked Reserves (9000/950 Plant & 
Vehicle Replacement) and half by entering into a five year hire purchase 
agreement for a maximum value of £21,000, for which all payments 
would be made within the Grounds & Environmental Services revenue 
budget.  

Page 16



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 JUNE 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 43

The meeting closed at 2024 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 4 JUNE 2018.

Chair            10 SEPTEMBER 2018 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Grounds and Environmental Services Committee

Date:  4th June 2018

Title: Equipment for Grounds and 
Environmental Services  

Purpose of the Report: To consider the purchase of new assets 
to help support and expand the services 
of the Grounds and Environmental 
Services team.

Contact Officer: Ian Haynes, Head of Grounds and 
Environmental Services

Corporate Objective/s
Leighton-Linslade Town Council Three Year Plan 
& Objectives 2015-2018

Aim 3 – 

“To provide great public open spaces, varied 
opportunities for sport and leisure and to exceed 
expectations in delivering cemetery and allotment 
services”

Implications:
Financial √ Nil effect on Reserves, Precept 

and 5-Year Financial Plan 
Projects

Human Resources Nil effect on Headcount
Operational/Service 
delivery

Increased capacity for both 
internal and external service 
delivery

Procedural/Legal √
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

Page 19



 
1.1 To note the report.

1.2 To endorse the purchase of 2 x ISUZU D-MAX (Double Cabs) with a 
maximum combined value of £42,000.

1.3 To endorse the sale or disposal of 1 x Citroen Berlingo (Y699 GNN)

1.4 To endorse the recommend to Council that this expenditure is funded by 
half Earmarked Reserves 9000/950 Plant & Vehicle Replacement and half 
by entering into a 5 year hire purchase agreement for a maximum value 
of £21,000 of which all payments will be made from the revenue budget. 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The purpose of this report is to carefully consider the merits of the Town Council 
purchasing new equipment that will be fit for purpose for use by the Grounds & 
Environmental Service team.

2.2 At present the Town Council vehicle fleet comprises of six; 
2 x Toyota Hilux
2 x Ford Transit (Flat Beds)
1 x Kubota RTV
1 x Citroen Berlingo 

2.3 Whilst these assets are currently being used to deliver the in-house ground 
maintenance it is considered that they have limited capacity to reduce the 
staffing teams into smaller groups or even single team working.

2.4 Therefore, Officers have reviewed our current fleet of vehicles against the 
market-leading products available and it is believed that at least one larger 
single 4x4 will be the best combination going forward. All existing equipment no 
longer required can be traded in to reduce the total level of expenditure or will 
be scrapped if no trade-in is offered.

3 MARKET COMPARISON 

3.1 The market for amenity vehicle is very competitive, with a number of main 
manufacturers dominating the market - Ford, Toyota and Isuzu. All have been 
approached to provide detailed information on all models ensuring the Town 
Council purchase the most appropriate vehicle on the market in conjunction 
with value for money.

3.2 It is believed that there is very little to compare between the models that have 
been reviewed. It is also believed that having a major Isuzu dealer within the 
County is a great benefit for servicing and repairs, less downtime.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Therefore, it would be Officers recommendation to consider purchasing; 2 x 

Page 20



 
Isuzu D-MAX one for the direct replacement for the Citroen Berlingo and one 
to expand the number of vehicles we have to expand the service that the 
Grounds and Environmental Services can offer, namely to fully provide the 
possible Town Ranger type services.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 All of the above equipment will dramatically increase the productivity of the 
single most expensive element within the grounds budget, our staff.

5. CONCLUSIONS

5.1 If the Committee is minded to approve the recommendations the equipment 
could be purchased and potentially delivered prior to August  2018. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



    

Page 90

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 7 JUNE 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors F Kharawala – LLTC
S Jones - LLTC
T Morris – LLTC
C Palmer – LLTC
E Wallace – LLTC
A Dodwell – CBC
B Spurr – CBC
R Berry - CBC
D Bowater – CBC (substituting for Cllr G Tubb)
G Perham – CBC (substituting for Cllr K Ferguson)

Also in attendance V Cannon (LLTC Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
S Sandiford (LLTC Head of Democratic and Central 
Services)
S Hughes (Community Engagement Manager, 
CBC)
S Mooring (Head of Place Delivery, CBC)
T Keaveney (Assistant Director Housing Services, 
CBC)
M Westerby (Head of Public Health, CBC)
C Commosioung (Independent Living Manager, CBC)
J Mockridge (Acting Hub Manager, East London NHS 
Foundation Trust)
R Monroe (South Beds & Luton Homeless Worker for 
ELFT)
J Borthwick (Service Manager, Public Protection, CBC)
M James (Licencing Officer, Public Protection, CBC)

Cllr C Hegley (Central Bedfordshire Council)
G Borelli (Chair, LB First)
B Chandler (Chair, LB Connect)

           Members of the Public: 2
Members of the Press: 0

210/LLP  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor R Berry be appointed Chair of the 
Committee for 2018-2019. There were no further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor R Berry Chair of the Leighton-Linslade 
Partnership Committee for 2018-2019. 

Page 23



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 7 JUNE 2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  91

Councillor Berry took the Chair. 

211/LLP APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor F Kharawala be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Committee for 2018-2019. There were no further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor F Kharawala Vice Chair of the Leighton-
Linslade Partnership Committee for 2018-2019. 

212/LLP APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received and accepted from the Town Clerk, 
Councillor G Tubb (substituted by Councillor D Bowater) and Councillor K 
Ferguson (substituted by Councillor G Perham). 

213/LLP DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  

Councillor R Berry declared an interest in the item regarding Taxis (minute 
reference 217/LLP) as a member of the Licensing Committee. 

214/LLP PUBLIC QUESTIONS

A member of the public spoke in respect of the retail park at Grovebury Road 
and asked whether Marks and Spencer would still be opening a store there, 
given their recent problems and announced store closures. A request was also 
made that local businesses be involved in the future development of land south 
of the High Street. 

215/LLP MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Partnership Committee 
meeting held on 3 May 2018. 

Minute reference 201/LLP: it was questioned whether contact had been made 
with Arriva regarding changes to bus routes. It was hoped that a representative 
from Arriva might be able to attend the next Committee meeting. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Partnership Committee meeting held 
on 3 May 2018 be approved as a correct record and be signed accordingly.  

216/LLP ENABLING DELIVERY IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE

By invitation, S Mooring of Central Bedfordshire Council attended the meeting to 
give an update in respect of the High Street Improvement Scheme and land 
south of the High Street. 

Page 24



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 7 JUNE 2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  92

It was admitted that the Central Bedfordshire High Street Improvement Scheme 
had been unacceptably delayed and recognised that this had had an impact on 
participating businesses. Mr Mooring advised the Committee that on starting in 
post, he had focussed on ensuring the right support was in place to start project 
delivery. The delivery phase had commenced in Dunstable first as the majority 
of scheme participants were located there. It was hoped that work in Leighton-
Linslade would be completed in July/August and the entire scheme completed 
by October. 

It was stated that timescales for the project had been underestimated and 
recognised that there were many complexities, as all the businesses taking part 
had different needs. If the scheme were to take place again in future the lessons 
learned would be applied, with more realistic timescales and a phased approach 
to delivery.

Committee members and others present expressed their frustration and 
disappointment at the delays and lack of communication regarding the project. 
In particular, the point was made that Easter week was a particularly busy period 
for businesses and therefore not ideal, but at no point had it been requested 
locally that delivery be delayed for this reason. 

A specific request was made for Central Bedfordshire officers to consider 
whether compensation would be appropriate for participants who had paid their 
contribution to the work several months ago.  

In respect of land south of the High Street, the Committee was advised that a 
decision was due to be made by the Central Bedfordshire Executive about the 
future of the Westlands facility in August. Once this was determined, it would be 
more feasible to progress the potential development of the land south of the High 
Street. It was reiterated that this was a challenging site and development would 
need to be both market led and complementary to the existing town centre offer. 

Committee members expressed frustration that this project had been discussed 
for a number of years without significant progress and asked that the Town 
Council and the community be kept informed of strategic plans and timescales. 
It was felt that vision and commitment was needed to drive the project forward. 

Mr Mooring was thanked for attending the meeting. 

217/LLP ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR AND HOMELESSNESS 

Several officers from Central Bedfordshire Council and representatives from 
East London NHS Foundation Trust and ELFT (South Beds & Luton Homeless 
service) attended the meeting to give a presentation regarding homelessness 
and antisocial behaviour. The overriding message was that the issues involved 
in both situations were complex and therefore a multi-agency partnership 
approach was the key to creating pathways between organisations, providing a 
progression plan for people, with the ultimate aim of getting them into secure 
housing, as well as employment or training.

Page 25



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 7 JUNE 2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  93

The work done by the Leighton-Linslade Homeless Service was praised and a 
case study example was given of a night shelter provision elsewhere in the 
county, which was extremely well managed and well tolerated by the local 
community. 

Central Bedfordshire Council was making a significant investment into acquiring 
further properties and the aspiration was to develop a larger number of smaller 
units, creating provision across Central Bedfordshire. Many Committee 
members raised the question of daytime provision for the homeless. The 
aspiration was that new properties would include space for a day room, which 
could then be used by the voluntary sector to provide services. 

The question was raised as to how the Committee or the Town Council could 
add support. The main focus was on seeking suitable land or accommodation in 
areas in which the local community would be supportive. 

An explanation was given of the hub run by P2R, located in Dunstable but with 
a clinic in Leighton-Linslade twice a week. This provided an opportunity for 
people to self-refer for services, or to walk in without appointment. Many clients 
were not registered with GP practices and without access to primary health care. 
The hub offered services including healthcare assessments, blood tests and so 
on.

It was noted that there was a strong element of concern within the Leighton-
Linslade community for those affected by homelessness and the question was 
raised as to whether to try to channel this willingness to help in a more 
centralised way – for example, by donating funding to a central source or 
considering schemes such as that currently running in Luton cafes to “buy two, 
take one”. It was agreed to consider this further. 

Officers were thanked for their time in attending the meeting to provide 
information.    

RESOLVED to note the information.

218/LLP TAXIS

Two officers from Central Bedfordshire Council representing Licensing attended 
the meeting in respect of the wish to relocate the existing taxi rank in the High 
Street. It was noted that this had been a topic for discussion for a number of 
years and that all possible options had been given consideration. It was felt that 
of the possible options, use of Lake Street remained the most potentially viable 
location. However, it was noted that enforcement would be a crucial element to 
ensuring that taxis were parked in the appropriate place and that the number of 
vehicles was kept to a reasonable level.

It was proposed and seconded that the Committee request Central Bedfordshire 
Council to determine an appropriate solution and approximate costs, in 
consultation with Highways and with Lake Street as the preferred location for the 
taxi rank, as well as considering how adequate enforcement could be provided. 

Page 26



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 7 JUNE 2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  94

On being put to the vote, the motion was carried (7 in favour, 1 against, 2 
abstentions). 
 
RESOLVED to request Central Bedfordshire Council to determine an 
appropriate solution and approximate costs for relocating the taxi rank to 
Lake Street, in consultation with Highways, as well as considering how 
adequate enforcement could be provided.

219/LLP SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDER 1(A)(A)

It was noted that in order to continue the meeting past 10pm, Standing Order 
1(a)(a) would need to be suspended. 

RESOLVED to suspend Standing Order 1(a)(a) for a maximum of thirty 
minutes. 

220/LLP  CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL UPDATE REPORT

The Committee received a comprehensive update report from Central 
Bedfordshire Council for information, including community safety, investment, 
employment and skills, community services, waste, highways, youth support 
services, volunteering, public health, social care and public protection. 

Several highlights were drawn to the Committee’s attention including the recent 
careers event, the number of commercial property enquiries, the number of 
volunteers involved at Rushmere Country Park, that the Leighton Buzzard library 
would be fully operational from Tuesday 12 June, installation of parking meters 
at Tiddenfoot Leisure Centre, the huge response to the Council’s recent waste 
consultation and the successful results from the “stop smoking” service.

It was noted that the state of the highways remained a huge concern for local 
residents and that the jet patcher was currently undertaking some repairs in the 
town and the area. It was noted that all highways faults could be reported via the 
Central Bedfordshire website and that the council’s resurfacing plan was now 
available online.  

RESOLVED to note the information. 

221/LLP BUSINESS GROUPS UPDATES

The Committee received a brief update from LB Connect, members of which 
were reporting good business, and from LB First, which was focussed on 
preparations for this year’s Independents’ Day on Saturday 7 July. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

Page 27



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 7 JUNE 2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  95

222/LLP COMMUNITY FORUM UPDATE

The Committee was advised that the event held on 5 May at the Library Theatre 
had been attended by about 48 people, many of whom had stayed for a 
considerable period of time, leading to quality conversations. The feedback from 
the event would need to be written up and a report would be brought to the next 
meeting of the Committee. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

223/LLP STANDING ITEMS

Joint Committee Review – an invitation was due to be issued imminently to the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman and Town Clerk of each Joint Committee to attend a 
meeting to consider the single set of Terms of Reference.

Community Facilities Grant – only one grant had been approved to date, to a 
local scout group. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

224/LLP COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN

The Committee received and gave consideration to the objectives and work plan 
for the municipal year 2018-2019.  It was noted that business support had been 
deferred to September and that following discussion during the meeting, a report 
on taxi rank relocation would also be anticipated for September. The Joint 
Committees’ Conference on Health planned for 21 June had also been added. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

225/LLP BUDGET REPORTS 

The Committee received a brief report regarding the current year budget to date.

RESOLVED to:

(i) note the report
(ii) transfer the 2018/19 budget allocation (£3,000) for the delivery of the 

Business Networking Event and business development to the Town 
Council for on-going delivery via the Cultural and Economic Services 
Committee.

The meeting closed at 2221 hours. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THIS IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 7 JUNE 2018.

Chair 6 SEPTEMBER 2018
 

Page 28



                                                                                                                                      Page 43

  
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

13 JUNE 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: D Bowater
A Brandham
C Chambers
S Cotter – in the Chair
G Perham (arrived 1940)
J M Freeman
F Kharawala
S Rahman (left 2040)

Also in attendance:  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
B Bodsworth (Town and Community 
Promotions Consultant) (interim) ((left 2015)
S Jewell (Best Bar None Coordinator)(left 
2015)
S Sandiford (part meeting)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
Cllr C Palmer (part meeting)
Cllr R Berry (part meeting)

                    Members of the public: 2 (part meeting)
Members of the press:  0

100/CE     APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor D Bowater be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Committee for the municipal year 2018-2019. There were no 
further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor D Bowater Vice Chair of the Cultural 
and Economic Services Committee for 2018-2019. 

101/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence had been received.

102/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  Councillor Bowater declared a personal interest in Christmas Lights 
Contract as a member of the Rotary Club of Leighton-Linslade which had 
funded the town centre Christmas Tree lights.

Page 29



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 13 JUNE 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 44

103/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from the public.

104/CE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

The Committee received the draft minutes of the previous committee 
meetings held on 12 March 2018 and 24 April 2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Cultural and Economic Services 
Committee held on 12 March 2018 and 24 April 2018 be approved as a 
correct record and were signed accordingly.

105/CE MARKET SUB-COMMITTEE

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Market Sub Committee 
meeting held on the 17 May 2018.

Minute reference 104/MK: a recommendation made by the Market Sub 
Committee in respect of use of the market for Councilor surgeries was given 
consideration.

RESOLVED to endorse the proposed guidelines regarding use of the 
market for Councillor surgeries.

106/CE COMMUNITY EVENTS

The Committee received a progress report on community events including 
the Outdoor cinema event at Mentmore Park in April, Big Lunch Food Festival 
held on the 3 June, Linslade Canal Festival in July, Music in the Park concert 
programme which began on the 3 June and continued until the 16 September 
and Living History Day in October.

The Committee agreed that the Big Lunch Food Festival had been a very 
successful event and a great advert for the town.  Planning for the Canal 
Festival was well underway with over 100 traders and 25 canal boats 
registered to date.  Cedars Upper School and Linslade Middle School would 
be used for car parking this year, with Cedars Upper School being available 
for guests with disabilities providing transport via a golf buggy to the Festival 
site.  A futher booking in September had been confirmed for an outdoor 
cinema event at Mentmore Park as feedback had been good from both 
members of the public and organisers after the event in April this year.

RESOLVED to note the report.

107/CE BEST BAR NONE UPDATE

The Committee received a verbal update on the Best Bar None Award 
Scheme designed to improve standards within licensed premises.  Funding 
had been secured to extend the scheme until March 2019 and it was hoped 
to secure more funding to continue past this date.  An evaluation was being 

Page 30



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 13 JUNE 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 45

completed to provide data on how the scheme helped public houses to 
improve their business for themselves and their customers.

An awards presentation had been held at Astral Park on 4 June which was 
well attended and enjoyed by guests.

RESOLVED to note the report.

108/CE TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE

The Committee received an update report regading TACTIC activity during 
February, March and April 2018 including the Youth Work Programme, 
external hire of the Centre outside operating hours, staffing, Youth 
Counselling – Relate, individual support and attendance.

                 
It was noted that following the resignation of one member of staff, a review 
of staff resources would take place to determine how to best fit delivery.  
Interim measures would be put in place leading up to the summer project 
enabling the team to offer most of their provision whilst recruitment took 
place. 

The Committee was advised that funding had not been secured by the 
current provider to continue the  Relate Youth Counselling services.  
However, existing TACTIC Reserves and Committee funds had been 
identified along with grant funds of £2,000 from the ‘Tesco Bags of Help’ 
grant scheme to continue funding the Wednesday and Thursday service 
using the original service provider Relate. 

A question was raised regarding attendance and the significant decline in the 
16 and over age group attendance since 2016. This was attributed to the 
natural ebb and flow of young people using the centre.

RESOLVED to note the report.

109/CE YOUTH PROMISE GRANT

The Committee received a verbal update on the grant scheme.  A application 
for £3,000 had been received and circulated to Committee members from 
Autism Bedfordshire, which met the required criteria.  It was unanimously 
agreed to support this application.

RESOLVED to approve Youth Promise Grant funding of £3,000 for 
Autism Bedfordshire.

110/CE MARKET TOWN REGENRATION FUNDED PROJECTS UPDATE

The Committee received a verbal update on Market Town Regeneration Fund 
projects including the market relaunch, electronic signage, architectural 
lighting and the High Street Improvement Scheme

Some concern was expressed regarding timescales for project completion 
but it was agreed some progress had been made with the High Street 
Improvement Scheme and work was taking place at present within the town.  

Page 31



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 13 JUNE 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 46

One electronic sign had been installed at Leighton Buzzard train station but 
three more were awaiting installation. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

111/CE COMMITTEE WORK PLAN AND OBJECTIVES

The Committee received the Committee objectives and work plan for the 
current year, in accordance with the Town Council’s Three Year Plan. 

It was noted that proposals for projects originally included in the application 
for Market Town Regeneration Fund funding, but which had not been 
approved by Central Bedfordshire Council for inclusion in that scheme, would 
now be brought back to Committee for further consideration. As part of this, 
Committee Members would be invited to informal discussions regarding 
potential Legacy History project ideas.

RESOLVED to note the Committee objectives and work plan for 2018-
2019.

112/CE SERVICE WORK UPDATES

The Committee received a verbal update on service work delivery including:
 

(i) Greensand Ridge Walk: Work was on-going to create a start/finish 
point at the bottom of the High Street for the Greensand Ridge Walk 
and Cycle Route.  

(ii) Multi storey toilets: the refurbishment of the town centre public 
conveniences at West Street was due to be completed by the 2nd July. 

(iii) Town centre surveys: were currently being analysed.
(iv) Defibrillators: a meeting had taken place with the local First 

Responder volunteer and it was noted that defibrillators were tested 
every week. None had as yet been used. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

113/CE BUDGET REPORTS

The Committee received a system generated budget report for the revenue 
budget and earmarked reserves, as well as an additional sheet outlining any 
committeed expenditure and the amounts remaining available.

RESOLVED:

a. To note the report
b. To allocate £500 contribution to fundraising for a sixth community 

defibrillator from budget 970/9057, to be released when sufficient 
funds have been secured to purchase the equipment.

114/CE CHRISTMAS LIGHTS CONTRACT

The Committee received a report regarding the new three-year Christmas 
Lighting contract.

Page 32



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 13 JUNE 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 47

Five interested parties submitted tenders and it was decided to recommend  
tender C to Committee.

RESOLVED to endorse tender ‘C’ to deliver the next 3-year Christmas 
Lighting Scheme.

115/CE EXCLUSION TO THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act   
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature 
of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion regarding 
Market Matters.

116/CE MARKET MATTERS

The Committee received a copy of a formal complaint submitted to the Town 
Clerk and was asked to give this consideration, in accordance with the Town 
Council’s complaints procedure.

Two representatives of the organisation submitting the complaint were 
permitted ten minutes in which to address the Committee. The Committee 
was then offered the opportunity to seek clarification on any points.

The two representatives left the meeting at 21:10 hours.

Councillors R Berry and C Palmer left the meeting at 21:11 hours.

Committee members discussed the content of the complaint and the verbal 
representation made. A number of aspects were reviewed and discussed. 

Following discussion, the Committee unanimously agreed the complaint was 
unsubstantiated and no further action to be taken. A formal response to the 
complainant would be written by the Town Clerk. 

RESOLVED the complaint was unsubstantiated and no further action to 
be taken.

The meeting closed at 2155 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 JUNE 2018.

Chair            23 JULY 2018

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

18 JUNE 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors: R Berry
S Cotter
K Cursons
A Dodwell
J M Freeman
S Jones 
C Palmer
G Perham
F Kharawala
E Wallace – in the Chair
S Ward

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 
Services)
C Cummins (Finance Officer)
M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
B Dunleavy (Democratic Services Manager, 
Central Bedfordshire Council)

Members of the public: 0

355/PF APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor S Jones be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Committee for 2018-2019.  There were no further nominations.

RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Jones Vice Chair of the Policy and 
Finance Committee for 2018-2019.

356/PF APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor K Ferguson.

357/PF DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. 

Councillor C Palmer declared a personal interest in the budget monitoring 
items as a member of the Friends of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom,    
Councillor J M Freeman, Councillor F Kharwala, Councillor G Perham as 
members of the Carnival Committee and Councillor A Dodwell as the town 

Page 35



Policy and Finance Committee 18 JUNE 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 144

council representative appointed to the Meadow Way Community 
Association.

358/PF QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from members of the public. 

359/PF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 16 April 2018 for consideration.

Minute reference 341/PF: Councillor A Dodwell confirmed the public 
meeting with the Police had taken place on Saturday 16 June with 
approximately 120 people attending.  Councillors and officers agreed that 
the meeting had been a success and thanked the Town Clerk for facilitating 
the meeting, as well as all those who attended.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 16 April 2018 be approved as a correct record and 
were signed accordingly. 

360/PF CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE GOVERNANCE REVIEW

By invitation, Brian Dunleavy (Democratic Services Manager, Central 
Bedfordshire Council) attended the meeting to provide an update in respect 
of the Central Bedfordshire Governance Review process. The current 
consultation was due to end on 6 July, after which a report would be taken 
to the General Purposes Committee and Central Bedfordshire Council. 
Should any boundary changes be proposed, then these would be given 
consideration by the Boundary Commission. It was anticipated that any 
changes agreed would be finalised and in effect from the May 2019 
elections. 

Signification discussion took place regarding the process of addressing 
anomalies in electoral arrangements and the question of parish boundaries, 
particularly in respect of the anticipated housing development to the east of 
the town, as set out in the East Leighton Linslade Framework Plan adopted 
by CBC in 2013. 

It was agreed that the Town Clerk should write to Central Bedfordshire 
Council regarding the boundary review process to reiterate the resolutions 
made by the Town Council in January 2018.

RESOLVED:
(i)  to note the report.
(ii) To delegate authority to the Town Clerk to write to Central 

Bedfordshire Council regarding the resolutions made by the 
Town Council in January 2018. 

Page 36



Policy and Finance Committee 18 JUNE 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 145

361/PF SUB-COMMITTEES

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Grants & Awards Sub-
Committee meeting held on 14 May 2018.  

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Grants & Awards Sub-
Committee meeting held on 14 May 2018.

The Committee received and gave consideration to the Terms of Reference 
for its Sub-Committees, the only change being the renaming of the Police 
Liaison Sub-Committee to the Community Safety Sub-Committee.

RESOLVED that no changes be made to the Terms of Reference for 
Sub-Committees of the Policy and Finance Committee at this time.

362/PF COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN

The Committee received a report summarising the key responsibilities of the 
Committee, as well as the objectives within the Town Council’s Three Year 
Plan 2015-2018 which fell within the remit of the Committee.  

A question was raised regarding Community Safety and how effective the 
Operation Dodford service level agreement had been in providing extra 
policing for the town. It was suggested an informal meeting be arranged 
with Acting Inspector Gurr before the next Community Safety Sub-
Committee Meeting on 16 July 2018 so councillors and officers could 
discuss options.  The outcomes of this meeting could then be considered 
at the Community Safety Sub-Committee meeting and any 
recommendations brought to the Policy & Finance Committee meeting on 
30 July, 2018.

RESOLVED to note the Committee Work Plan and Objectives for 2018-
2019.

363/PF APRIL AND MAY PAYMENTS 2018

The Committee received two sets of schedule of payments which had 
previously been approved for payment by the Town Clerk and 
countersigned by two account signatories.          

The schedule for April dated  24 April  2018  included BACS payments 
amounting to £114,572.45 (page numbers 2320, 2324-2334) and cheque 
payments amounting to £6,404.35 (cheque numbers 17179-17189), 
including White House petty cash amounting to £71.00, Astral Park £138.46 
and TACTIC £40.74.

The monthly salaries listing for April 2018 amounting to £97,990.00 gross 
was received.  A cash book report for April 2018, including details of all 
direct debit payments, was also received.

Page 37



Policy and Finance Committee 18 JUNE 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 146

The schedule for May dated  18 May  2018 included BACS payments 
amounting to £199,024.33 (page numbers 2336, 2343-2357) and cheque 
payments amounting to £36,809.19 (cheque numbers 17190, 17191-
17230), including White House petty cash amounting to £132.20, Astral 
Park £162.43 and TACTIC £35.55.

The monthly salaries listing for May 2018 amounting to £102,246.71 gross 
was received.  A cash book report for May 2018, including details of all 
direct debit payments, was also received.

RESOLVED to note the schedules of accounts for April 2018 and May 
2018.

It was noted that all payments had been made within the budget and that 
there were no irregularities to be drawn to the attention of the Committee. 

364/PF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT (FIRST INTERIM)

The Committee received the final internal audit report for 2017-2018 and 
noted that no issues had been identified. It was recognised that the Council 
was continuing to operate a sound, pro-active approach to risk 
management and corporate governance issues, together with the 
development and management of effective internal controls and procedural 
documentation.  The Committee expressed thanks to officers for another 
excellent report.

RESOLVED to note the report.

365/PF TOWN MAYOR’S ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

The Committee received the full accounts for the Town Mayor’s Charity 
Fund for the municipal year 2017-2018.  A total of £8,200 had been raised 
for Councillor S Rahman’s chosen charities of Keech, St John’s Hospice, 
Aquarius, Autism Bedfordshire and Leighton-Linslade Homeless service.

The Committee expressed gratitude and appreciation to Councillor 
Rahman for his efforts throughout the year in raising funds for these worthy 
causes.

RESOLVED to note the report.

366/PF     MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Committee received a summary of Councillor meeting attendance 
during the municipal year 2018-2019.  

RESOLVED to note the report.
 

Page 38



Policy and Finance Committee 18 JUNE 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 147

367/PF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

The Committee received the Annual Return and Statement of Accounts. 
The Committee also discussed the establishment of a new earmarked 
reserve for Professional Fees of £20,000 which would be readily available 
if and when the need arose.  

RESOLVED to note the report.

RESOLVED to endorse the creation of a new Earmarked Reserve for 
Professional Fees in the amount of £20,000, from funds underspent 
from various central budgets within the financial year 2017-2018.

RECOMMENDED to Council to approve the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2017-2018.

RECOMMENDED to Council to approve the Accounting Statements 
for 2017-2018. 

368/PF     INVESTMENTS

The Committee received and considered a report and a brief verbal 
overview in respect of investments and also considered the operational 
arrangements regarding day to day banking to maximise return on monies 
invested.

RESOLVED to reinvest the existing Santander 12 Month Time Deposit, 
that is maturing on 11 July 2018 to the value of £1,055,970 into a 
Nationwide Business One Year Fixed, currently offering 0.90% Gross 
AER.

RESOLVED:

(a) To transfer the annual precept (which is paid in two 
instalments, first   in April 2018 and second in September 2018) from 
the NatWest Business Reserve Account to the existing Nationwide 
Instant Access Account currently paying 0.50%.

(b) To endorse that funds continue to be drawn down from the 
Nationwide Instant Access Saver Account to the NatWest Business 
Reserve account to fund the Monthly expenditure, as and when 
required throughout the year.

(c) That the arrangements above be reviewed upon receipt of the 
first tranche of the precept for 2019/20.

369/PF REVISED COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY

The Committee received an update regarding the draft revised Community 
Engagement Strategy and considered extending the period of consultation 

Page 39



Policy and Finance Committee 18 JUNE 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 148

to August 2018 to ensure adequate time had been allowed for comment 
and the revised document would be fit for purpose.

RESOLVED to approve the proposed minor amendments to the draft 
revised Strategy and the extension of the consultation period until 
end of August 2018. 

370/PF DATA PROTECTION

The Committee received and considered an update regarding data 
protection following the introduction of the 2018 Data Protection Act 
including the General Data Protection Regulation. It was noted that 
significant work had been undertaken and that this would continue. The 
Committee was asked to consider a number of new and revised policies 
and noted that further policies were anticipated to be brought to the next 
meeting. 

RECOMMENDED to Council approval of the following policies:

(a) Information & Data Protection Policy
(b) ICT Security Policy
(c) Information Security Incident Policy
(d) Removable Media Policy
(e) Town Council Privacy Notice
(f) Subject Access Requests procedure

371/PF HONORARY BURGESS PROCEDURE

The Committee received and considered a report regarding a change in 
procedure to meet data protection requirements.  A question was raised 
regarding point 8 on Appendix A and it was agreed to reword this point.

RESOLVED to approve the proposed revised Honorary Burgess 
procedure, Honorary Burgess Nomination form and Honorary 
Burgess Nominee Authorisation form, to ensure compliance with new 
date protection legislation effective from May 2018.

372/PF   CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2018-2019

The Committee received a verbal update regarding a change to the date of 
the Planning and Transport Committee from 1 May 2019 to 24 April 2019, 
in view of the elections to take place on 2 May 2019.

RECOMMENDED to Council a change of meeting date for Planning 
and Transport committee from 1 May 2019 to 24 April 2019.

Page 40



Policy and Finance Committee 18 JUNE 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 149

373/PF TREE MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Committee considered a recommendation  made by the Grounds & 
Environmental Services Committee on 4 June 2018 to consider re-
endorsement of the Tree Managment Policy, for the period 2018-2021.

RECOMMENDED to Council to re-endorse the Tree Management 
Policy for the period 2018-2021.

374/PF EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) 
Act 1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential 
nature of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion 
regarding: (a) Town Council premises.

375/PF TOWN COUNCIL ACCOMMODATION

The Committee received a report to seek member endorsement to enter 
into a 20 year lease agreement to safeguard future town council 
accommodation needs.

RECOMMENDED to Council that the terms for the new lease be 
endorsed thereby safeguarding future town council accommodation 
needs for 20 years or less.

The meeting closed at 2119 hours.   

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 JUNE 2018.

Chair   30 JULY 2018.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Information & Data Protection Policy

Introduction
In order to conduct its business, services and duties, Leighton-Linslade Town Council processes a 
wide range of data, relating to its own operations and some which it handles on behalf of partners. 
In broad terms, this data can be classified as:

 Data shared in the public arena about the services it offers, its mode of operations and other 
information it is required to make available to the public.

 Confidential information and data not yet in the public arena such as ideas or policies that are 
being worked up.

 Confidential information about other organisations because of commercial sensitivity.
 Personal data concerning its current, past and potential employees, Councillors, and volunteers. 
 Personal data concerning individuals who contact it for information, to access its services or 

facilities or to make a complaint.

Leighton-Linslade Town Council will adopt procedures and manage responsibly all data which it 
handles and will respect the confidentiality of both its own data and that belonging to partner 
organisations it works with and members of the public. In some cases, it will have contractual 
obligations towards confidential data, but in addition will have specific legal responsibilities for 
personal and sensitive information under data protection legislation.  

This Policy is linked to our ICT Security Policy which will ensure information considerations are 
central to the ethos of the organisation. 

The Town Council will periodically review and revise this policy in the light of experience, comments 
from data subjects and guidance from the Information Commissioners Office.

The Council will be as transparent as possible about its operations and will work closely with public, 
community and voluntary organisations. Therefore, in the case of all information which is not 
personal or confidential, it will be prepared to make it available to partners and members of the 
Town’s communities. Details of information which is routinely available is contained in the Council’s 
Publication Scheme which is available on our website and is based on the statutory model 
publication scheme for local councils. 

Protecting Confidential or Sensitive Information
Leighton-Linslade Town Council recognises it must at times, keep and process sensitive and 
personal information about both employees and the public, it has therefore adopted this policy not 
only to meet its legal obligations but to ensure high standards. 

The General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) which became law on 25th May 2018 
(superseding the the Data Protection Act 1998) seeks to strike a balance between the rights of 
individuals and the sometimes, competing interests of those such as the Town Council which has 
legitimate reasons for using personal information.

The policy is based on the premise that Personal Data must be: 
• Processed fairly, lawfully and in a transparent manner in relation to the data subject. 
• Collected for specified, explicit and legitimate purposes and not further processed in a manner 
that is incompatible with those purposes. 
• Adequate, relevant and limited to what is necessary in relation to the purposes for which they are 
processed. 
• Accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date. 

Page 43



 Information & Data Protection Policy Page 2 of 6

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$2x1vmqla.doc

• Kept in a form that permits identification of data subjects for no longer than is necessary for the 
purposes for which the personal data are processed. 
• Processed in a manner that ensures appropriate security of the personal data including protection 
against unauthorised or unlawful processing and against accidental loss, destruction or damage, 
using appropriate technical or organisational measures.

Data Protection Terminology 

Data subject - means the person whose personal data is being processed. 
That may be an employee, prospective employee, associate or prospective associate of the Town 
Council or someone transacting with it in some way, or an employee, Member or volunteer with one 
of our clients, or persons transacting or contracting with one of our clients when we process data 
for them. 

Personal data - means any information relating to a natural person or data subject that can be 
used directly or indirectly to identify the person. It can be anything from a name, a photo, and an 
address, date of birth, an email address, bank details, and posts on social networking sites or a 
computer IP address. 

Sensitive personal data - includes information about racial or ethnic origin, political opinions, and 
religious or other beliefs, trade union membership, medical information, sexual orientation, genetic 
and biometric data or information related to offences or alleged offences where it is used to 
uniquely identify an individual.
 
Data controller - means a person who (either alone or jointly or in common with other persons) 
(e.g.  Town Council, employer, council) determines the purposes for which and the manner in which 
any personal data is to be processed. 

Data processor - in relation to personal data, means any person (other than an employee of the 
data controller) who processes the data on behalf of the data controller.

Processing information or data - means obtaining, recording or holding the information or data or 
carrying out any operation or set of operations on the information or data, including: 
• organising, adapting or altering it 
• retrieving, consulting or using the information or data 
• disclosing the information or data by transmission, dissemination or otherwise making it available 
• aligning, combining, blocking, erasing or destroying the information or data. regardless of the
   Technology used. 

Leighton-Linslade Town Council processes personal data in order to:
 fulfil its duties as an employer by complying with the terms of contracts of employment, 

safeguarding the employee and maintaining information required by law.
 pursue the legitimate interests of its business and its duties as a public body, by fulfilling 

contractual terms with other organisations, and maintaining information required by law.
 monitor its activities including the equality and diversity of its activities
 fulfil its duties in operating the business premises including security
 assist regulatory and law enforcement agencies
 process information including the recording and updating details about its Councillors, 

employees, partners and volunteers. 
 process information including the recording and updating details about individuals who contact it 

for information, or to access a service, or make a complaint.
 undertake surveys, censuses and questionnaires to fulfil the objectives and purposes of the 

Council.
 undertake research, audit and quality improvement work to fulfil its objects and purposes.
 carry out Council administration. Page 44



 Information & Data Protection Policy Page 3 of 6

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$2x1vmqla.doc

Where appropriate and governed by necessary safeguards, we will carry out the above processing 
jointly with other appropriate bodies from time to time.

The Council will ensure that at least one of the following conditions is met for personal 
information to be considered fairly processed:

 The individual has consented to the processing
 Processing is necessary for the performance of a contract or agreement with the individual
 Processing is required under a legal obligation
 Processing is necessary to protect the vital interests of the individual
 Processing is necessary to carry out public functions
 Processing is necessary in order to pursue the legitimate interests of the data controller or 

third parties.

Particular attention is paid to the processing of any sensitive personal information and the Town 
Council will ensure that at least one of the following conditions is met:

 Explicit consent of the individual
 Required by law to process the data for employment purposes
 A requirement in order to protect the vital interests of the individual or another person

Who is responsible for protecting a person’s personal data? 

The Town Council as a corporate body has ultimate responsibility for ensuring compliance with the 
Data Protection legislation. The Council has delegated this responsibility day to day to the Town 
Clerk.

 Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 
 Phone: 01525 631920
 Correspondence: The Town Clerk, Leighton-Linslade Town Council, The White House, 

Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire LU7 1HD. 

The Town Council has also appointed an external Data Protection Officer to ensure compliance  
with Data Protection legislation who may be contacted at: The Local Council Public Advisory 
Service, The Vision Centre, 5 Eastern Way, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP32 7AB

The Data Protection Officer’s responsibilities include:
 Keeping the Council updated about data protection responsibilities, risks and issues
 Reviewing all data protection procedures and policies on a regular basis
 Assisting with data protection training and advice
 Responding to queries from staff, councillors, members of the public or service users
 Reviewing contracts and agreements with third parties to ensure data protection 

requirements are met

Diversity Monitoring
Leighton-Linslade Town Council monitors the diversity of its employees, and Councillors, in order to 
ensure that there is no inappropriate or unlawful discrimination in the way it conducts its activities. It 
undertakes similar data handling in respect of prospective employees. This data will always be 
treated as confidential.  It will only be accessed by authorised individuals within the Council and will 
not be disclosed to any other bodies or individuals. Diversity information will never be used as 
selection criteria and will not be made available to others involved in the recruitment 
process. Anonymised data derived from diversity monitoring will be used for monitoring purposes 
and may be published and passed to other bodies. 

The Council will always give guidance on personnel data to employees, councillors, partners and 
volunteers through a Privacy Notice and ensure that individuals on whom personal information is 
kept are aware of their rights and have easy access to that information on request.

Page 45



 Information & Data Protection Policy Page 4 of 6

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$2x1vmqla.doc

Appropriate technical and organisational measures will be taken against Unauthorised or unlawful 
processing of personal data and against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, personal 
data.

Personal data shall not be transferred to a country or territory outside the European Economic 
Areas unless that country or territory ensures an adequate level of protection for the rights and 
freedoms of data subjects in relation to the processing of personal data.

Information provided to us
The information provided (personal information such as name, address, email address, phone 
number) will be processed and stored so that it is possible for us to contact, respond to or conduct 
the transaction requested by the individual.  By transacting with Leighton-Linslade Town Council, 
individuals are deemed to be giving consent for their personal data provided to be used and 
transferred in accordance with this policy, however where ever possible specific written consent will 
be sought. It is the responsibility of those individuals to ensure that the Town Council is able to 
keep their personal data accurate and up-to-date. The personal information will be not shared or 
provided to any other third party or be used for any purpose other than that for which it was 
provided.

The Council’s Right to Process Information 
General Data Protection Regulations (and Data Protection Act) Article 6 (1) (a) (b) and (e)
Processing is with consent of the data subject, or
Processing is necessary for compliance with a legal obligation.
Processing is necessary for the legitimate interests of the Council.

Information Security
The Town Council cares to ensure the security of personal data. We make sure that your 
information is protected from unauthorised access, loss, manipulation, falsification, destruction or 
unauthorised disclosure. This is done through appropriate technical measures and appropriate 
policies. 
We will only keep your data for the purpose it was collected for and only for as long as is 
necessary, in accordance with our Document Retention Policy, after which it will be deleted or 
destroyed.

Children
We will not process any data relating to a child (under 13) without the express parental/ guardian 
consent of the child concerned. 

Rights of a Data Subject
 
Access to Information: an individual has the right to request access to the information we have on 
them. They can do this by contacting our Town Clerk or Data Protection Officer:   

Information Correction: If they believe that the information we have about them is incorrect, they 
may contact us so that we can update it and keep their data accurate. Please contact:  Town Clerk.

Information Deletion: If the individual wishes the Town Council to delete the information about 
them, they can do so by contacting the Town Clerk. 

Right to Object: If an individual believes their data is not being processed for the purpose it has 
been collected for, they may object by contacting the Town Clerk or Data Protection Officer.

The Town Council does not use automated decision making or profiling of individual personal data.

Complaints: If an individual has a complaint regarding the way their personal data has been 
processed, they may make a complaint to the Town Clerk, Data Protection Officer or the 
Information Commissioners Office casework@ico.org.uk Tel: 0303 123 1113.

Page 46

mailto:casework@ico.org.uk


 Information & Data Protection Policy Page 5 of 6

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$2x1vmqla.doc

The Council will always give guidance on personnel data to employees through the Employee 
handbook and Privacy Notice.

The Council will ensure that individuals on whom personal information is kept are aware of their 
rights and have easy access to that information on request.

Making Information Available
The Publication Scheme is a means by which the Council can make a significant amount of 
information available routinely, without waiting for someone to specifically request it.  The scheme 
is intended to encourage local people to take an interest in the work of the Council and its role 
within the community. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, this Scheme specifies 
the classes of information which the Council publishes or intends to publish. It is supplemented with 
an Information Guide which will give greater detail of what the Council will make available and 
hopefully make it easier for people to access it.
All formal meetings of Council and its committees are subject to statutory notice being given on 
notice boards, the Website and available to the local media. The Council publishes an annual 
programme in May each year. All formal meetings are open to the public and press and reports to 
those meetings and relevant background papers are available for the public to see on the website. 
The Council welcomes public participation and has a public participation session on each Council 
and committee meeting. Details can be seen in the Council’s Standing Orders, which are available 
on its Website or at its Offices.

Occasionally, Council or committees may need to consider matters in private. Examples of this are 
matters involving personal details of staff, or a particular member of the public, or where details of 
commercial/contractual sensitivity are to be discussed. This will only happen after a formal 
resolution has been passed to exclude the press and public and reasons for the decision are 
stated. Minutes from all formal meetings, including the confidential parts are public documents.

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 requires written records to be made 
of certain decisions taken by officers under delegated powers. These are not routine operational 
and administrative decisions such as giving instructions to the workforce or paying an invoice 
approved by Council, but would include urgent action taken after consultation with the Chairman, 
such as responding to a planning application in advance of Council. In other words, decisions which 
would have been made by Council or committee had the delegation not been in place.

The 2014 Regulations also amend the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 to allow the 
public or press to film, photograph or make an audio recording of council and committee meetings 
normally open to the public. The Council will where possible facilitate such recording unless it is 
being disruptive. It will also take steps to ensure that children, the vulnerable and members of the 
public who object to being filmed are protected without undermining the broader purpose of the 
meeting.

The Council will be pleased to make special arrangements on request for persons who do not have 
English as their first language or those with hearing or sight difficulties. 

Disclosure Information
The Council will as necessary undertake checks on both staff and Members with the the Disclosure 
and Barring Service and will comply with their Code of Conduct relating to the secure storage, 
handling, use, retention and disposal of Disclosures and Disclosure Information. 

Data audit and register
Regular data audits to manage and mitigate risks will inform the central data register. This contains 
information on what data is held, where it is stored, how it is used, who is responsible, retention 
timescales and what security measures are in place.Page 47



 Information & Data Protection Policy Page 6 of 6

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$2x1vmqla.doc

Reporting breaches
All employees and elected Members of the Town Council have an obligation to report actual or 
potential data protection compliance failures. This allows us to:

 Investigate the failure and take remedial steps if necessary
 Maintain a register of compliance failures
 Notify the supervisory authority of any compliance failures.

Further information is outlined in the Council’s Information Security Incident policy. 

Data Transparency
The Council has resolved to act in accordance with the Code of Recommended Practice for Local 
Authorities on Data Transparency (September 2011). This sets out the key principles for local 
authorities in creating greater transparency through the publication of public data and is intended to 
help them meet obligations of the legislative framework concerning information.

“Public data” means the objective, factual data on which policy decisions are based and on which 
public services are assessed, or which is collected or generated in the course of public service 
delivery.

The Code will therefore underpin the Council’s decisions on the release of public data and ensure it 
is proactive in pursuing higher standards and responding to best practice as it develops.

The principles of the Code are:
Demand led: new technologies and publication of data should support transparency and 
accountability
Open: the provision of public data will be integral to the Council’s engagement with residents so 
that it drives accountability to them.
Timely: data will be published as soon as possible following production.

Government has also issued a further Code of Recommended Practice on Transparency, 
compliance of which is compulsory for parish councils with turnover (gross income or gross 
expenditure) not exceeding £25,000 per annum. These councils will be exempt from the 
requirement to have an external audit from April 2017.  Leighton-Linslade Town Council exceeds 
this turnover but will never the less ensure the following information is published on its Website for 
ease of access:

 All transactions above £500.
 End of year accounts
 Annual Governance Statements
 Internal Audit Reports
 List of Councillor or Member responsibilities
 Details of public land and building assets
 Draft minutes of Council and committees within one month
 Agendas and associated papers no later than three clear days before the meeting.

Adopted by Council: Leighton-Linslade Town Council
Review Date: (Relevant date)

Page 48



ICT Security Policy

Purpose
Leighton-Linslade Town Council is making increasing use of technology in all areas of its services. 
The information that the Council holds, processes, maintains and shares is an important asset that 
needs to be suitably protected. The ICT Security Policy sets out an overarching framework in 
respect of all matters relating to use of electronic data and equipment. 

Scope
This policy applies to all information held or owned by the Town Council, any ICT equipment and 
infrastructure used and the physical environment in which the information/ICT is used. 
This policy automatically applies to all Town Councillors, employees, committees and departments.
Where access is to be granted to any third party (e.g. contractors, suppliers, volunteers and 
partners), compliance with this policy must be agreed and documented. 

Legal Obligations
The Town Council is required to adhere to legislation including data protection and transparency of 
information. Full details can be found in the Information and Data Protection Policy. 
The Council is required to have in place appropriate technical and organisational measures against 
unauthorised or unlawful processing of personal data and accidental damage or destruction of 
personal data.

Policy Framework
A number of policies and procedures exist to safeguard the Council and these must be followed by 
employees and any others accessing Town Council systems. These include:

Information & Data Protection Policy
Information Security Incident Policy (& Information Security Breach Form)
Removable Media Policy
Use of Internet and Email Policy
Mobile Device User Agreement
Employee Handbook
Password Changing Procedure
Home Working Protocol
Social Media Procedure
Document Retention Policy
Bring Your Own Device Policy

ICT Infrastructure
The physical IT infrastructure of the Town Council will be protected as follows, alongside any other 
measures deemed appropriate by the Council’s IT support provider: 

Town Council computers
 Should be shut down properly at the end of each business day
 Users should allow for software updates to be installed when prompted to do so
 Will be maintained by the Council’s IT provider to ensure antivirus and other security 

measures are installed and kept up to date
 May be remotely accessed by the Council’s IT provider when necessary
 Software cannot be downloaded onto machines without an Administrator password
 All Town Council work related documentation should be saved on the shared network drive 

to ensure it is secure and backed up
 Personal or restricted documentation may be saved on an individual’s H drive – it cannot be 

accessed by other staff but will be backed up
 Computer screens should be locked when users are away from their desksPage 49



 ICT Security Policy Page 2 of 3

 Monitors should be located appropriately, especially in shared offices or for users likely to 
access sensitive data

Town Council laptops
 As above, but in addition: laptops should not be removed from Town Council premises 

except with permission from the Town Clerk or a Head of Service
 Screens should be locked when not in use

Town Council owned mobile devices
 Where appropriate, devices may have pre-installed software on them for security purposes.
 Users of Town Council owned devices must sign a User Agreement outlining terms of use. 

This includes downloading of software, internet and email use, messaging, pictures and that 
the device may be subject to audit or inspection.

 Reasonable precautions must be taken by users to ensure security, including password or 
PIN locking, caution when using freely available WiFi which may be unsecured, caution 
when installing software or opening messages which may contain links or attachments.

 Screens should be locked when not in use

Server
 Any Town Council servers must be stored in appropriate conditions relating to security, 

accessibility, temperature etc as advised by the IT support provider.
 The server will be maintained and accessed (either remotely or on site) by the Council’s IT 

support provider.
 Appropriate software such as firewalls, antivirus, antimalware to minimise risk of information 

loss arising from theft/misappropriation or unauthorised use will be installed and maintained 
by the Council’s IT provider. 

 An Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) will be installed to prevent risk of disk corruption as 
a result of power failure.

 The Town Council’s IT provider will ensure secure password protection for administrator 
functions on the server.

Building Security
 Equipment should be stored as securely as possible, within a locked office and a locked and 

alarmed building. 

Data Storage
 The Town Council will ensure secure and robust procedures are in place for the back-up of 

data from the server and, where appropriate, standalone machines. 
 Backed up data will, where possible, be stored off-site or in the Cloud to prevent potential 

loss. 

Network drives
 All electronic information should be saved on the Town Council’s network drives rather than 

on the hard disk of individual machines.
 Access to the Town Council network may only be obtained through the use of a specific 

user name and password designated by a system administrator.
 Passwords should be changed at least once every six months and should not be disclosed 

to any other party.
 Where deemed appropriate in the interests of data protection, sensitive and restricted 

information will be saved in folders on the shared network drive to which access has been 
restricted to named users. Only the Town Clerk or Head of Democratic & Central Services 
may request access to restricted drives for specific users. 

Page 50



 ICT Security Policy Page 3 of 3

Email
 All use of email is subject to the Town Council’s Use of Email and Internet Policy.
 Where deemed operationally necessary, access to another user’s email may be requested 

through the appropriate channels. This may be temporary, for example in the event of 
holiday or long term sickness absence. Access should be formally provider to another user 
rather than the sharing of log-on passwords. 

 Use of encryption should be carefully considered if transmitting sensitive or personal 
information via email. Alternative methods of data sharing may be more secure. 

Internet
 All use of internet is subject to the Town Council’s Use of Email and Internet Policy.
 Software programmes may not be downloaded from the internet without the authorisation of 

a systems administrator. 
.WiFi

 Personal devices used on Town Council premises are at the responsibility of the owner.
 Town Council staff or guest WiFi may be accessed where available.

Software
 Software may only be installed by the Council’s IT support provider or a systems 

administrator
 Formal licensing agreements must be in place to ensure support is available
 Access to software may be based on the initial user authorisation at log-in or may require 

additional authentication through a further username and/or password
 Where software is maintained and backed up by a third party provider to the cloud, a clear 

agreement must be in place, particularly in relation to measures to ensure data security and 
data protection (compliance with General Data Protection Regulation)

Disposal
All electronic or ICT related equipment must be returned to the Town Council in the event of it being 
faulty, outdated, no longer required or the user no longer being employed or a member of the Town 
Council. Electronic equipment will be restored to original factory settings where possible, for future 
re-use, or all data will be securely removed. Electronic devices will then be disposed of responsibly 
and securely in accordance with The Waste Electric and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Regulations 
2013.

Training
Despite the growth in targeted cyber crime, it is recognised that the majority of risk occurs as a 
result of user error. The Town Council has adopted a policy of ongoing training for staff and 
Councillors. Data protection training is mandatory for all office based staff at least once every three 
years. In addition to such formal training, it is Council policy to raise awareness of security issues 
and good practice recommendations on an ongoing basis.

Review
This and related policies will be kept under regular review to take account of new legislation, 
regulations or business practices. 

Adopted by Council: Leighton-Linslade Town Council
Review Date: (Relevant date)

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



INFORMATION SECURITY INCIDENT POLICY

1 Purpose

1.1 This document defines an Information Security Incident and the procedure to report 
an incident.

2 Scope

2.1 This document applies to all Councillors, Committees, Departments Partners, 
Employees of the Council, contractual third parties and agents of the Council who 
have access to Information Systems or information used for Leighton-Linslade Town 
Council purposes.

3 Definition

3.1 An information security incident occurs when data or information is transferred or is 
at risk of being transferred to somebody who is not entitled to receive it, or data is at 
risk from corruption.

4 An Information Security Incident includes:

 The loss or theft of data or information
 The transfer of data or information to those who are not entitled to receive that 

information
 Attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorised access to data or 

information storage or a computer system 
 Changes to information or data or system hardware, firmware, or software 

characteristics without the council's knowledge, instruction, or consent 
 Unwanted disruption or denial of service to a system
 The unauthorised use of a system for the processing or storage of data by any 

person.

5 When to report

5.1 All events that result in the actual or potential loss of data, breaches of 
confidentiality, unauthorised access or changes to systems should be reported as 
soon as they happen.

6 How to report

6.1 The Head of Democratic & Central Services must be contacted by email or 
telephone. They will log the incident and forward it on to the relevant departments. 

6.2 The Head of Democratic & Central Services will require you to supply further 
information, the nature of which will depend upon the nature of the incident. 
However, the following information must be supplied:

Page 53



Information Security Incident Policy

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$fwi5jba4.doc Page 2 of 3

 Contact name and number of person reporting the incident 
 The type of data or information involved
 Whether the loss of the data puts any person or other data at risk
 Location of the incident
 Inventory numbers of any equipment affected, if known
 Date and time the security incident occurred
 Location of data or equipment affected
 Type and circumstances of the incident.

6.3 Your line manager must also be informed to enable them to investigate and confirm 
that the details represent a valid security incident as defined above. The outcomes 
of these actions are to be reported to the Head of Democratic & Central Services for 
inclusion in the incident details for investigation.    

7 Further Actions

7.1 The Head of Democratic & Central Services will complete an Information Security 
Breach form, which will set out who needs to be advised and what further action 
needs to be taken to address the incident. 

8 What to Report

8.1 All Information Security Incidents must be reported.

9 Examples of Information Security / Misuse Incident Protocols

9.1 Information Security Incidents are not limited to this list, which contains examples of 
some of the most common incidents.

9.2 Malicious Incident

 Computer infected by a Virus or other malware, (for example spyware or adware)
 An unauthorised person changing data
 Receiving and forwarding chain letters – Including virus warnings, scam 

warnings and other emails which encourage the recipient to forward onto others.
 Social engineering - Unknown people asking for information which could gain 

them access to council data (e.g. a password or details of a third party).
 Unauthorised disclosure of information electronically, in paper form or verbally.
 Falsification of records, Inappropriate destruction of records 
 Denial of Service, for example 
 Damage or interruption to Leighton-Linslade Town Council equipment or 

services caused deliberately e.g. computer vandalism
 Connecting non-council equipment to the council network
 Unauthorised Information access or use
 Giving information to someone who should not have access to it - verbally, in 

writing or electronically
 Printing or copying confidential information and not storing it correctly or 

confidentially.

9.3 Access Violation
Page 54



Information Security Incident Policy

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$fwi5jba4.doc Page 3 of 3

 Disclosure of logins to unauthorised people
 Disclosure of passwords to unauthorised people e.g. writing down your password 

and leaving it on display
 Accessing systems using someone else's authorisation e.g. someone else's user 

id and password
 Inappropriately sharing security devices 
 Other compromise of user identity e.g. access to network or specific system by 

unauthorised person 
 Allowing Unauthorised Physical access to secure premises e.g. server room, 

scanning facility, dept area.

9.4 Environmental

 Loss of integrity of the data within systems and transferred between systems 
 Damage caused by natural disasters e.g. fire, burst pipes, lighting etc
 Deterioration of paper records
 Deterioration of backup tapes
 Introduction of unauthorised or untested software
 Information leakage due to software errors.

9.5 Inappropriate use
 Accessing inappropriate material on the internet
 Sending inappropriate emails
 Personal use of services and equipment in work time
 Using unlicensed Software
 Misuse of facilities, e.g. phoning premium line numbers.

9.6 Theft / loss Incident

 Theft / loss of data – written or electronically held
 Theft / loss of any Leighton-Linslade Town Council equipment including 

computers, monitors, mobile phones, tablet devices, Memory sticks, CDs.

9.7 Accidental Incident

 Sending an email containing sensitive information to 'all staff' by mistake
 Receiving unsolicited mail of an offensive nature, e.g. containing pornographic, 

obscene, racist, sexist, grossly offensive or violent material
 Receiving unsolicited mail which requires you to enter personal data.

9.8 Miskeying

 Receiving unauthorised information
 Sending information to wrong recipient.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



REMOVABLE MEDIA POLICY

1 Purpose

1.1 This policy supports the controlled storage and transfer of information by Councillors 
of Leighton-Linslade Town Council and all employees, temporary staff and agents 
(contractors, consultants and others working on behalf of the Council) who have 
access to and use of computing equipment that is owned or leased by Leighton-
Linslade Town Council.

1.2 Information is used throughout the Authority and is sometimes shared with external 
organisations and applicants.  The use of removable media may result in the loss of 
the ability to access information, or interference with the integrity of information, 
which could have a significant effect on the efficient operation of the Authority and 
may result in financial loss and an inability to provide services to the public.

1.3 It is therefore essential for the continued operation of the Authority that the 
availability, integrity and confidentiality of all storage devices are maintained at a 
level which is appropriate to the Authority’s needs.

1.4 The aims of the policy are to ensure that the use of removable storage devices is 
accomplished with due regard to:

1.4.1 Enabling the correct data to be made available where it is required
1.4.2 Maintaining the integrity of the data
1.4.3 Preventing unintended consequences to the stability of the computer network
1.4.4 Building confidence and trust in data that is being shared between systems
1.4.5 Maintaining high standards of care towards data and information about 

individual citizens, staff or information that is exempt from disclosure
1.4.6 Compliance with legislation, policies or good practice requirements

2 Scope

2.1 This policy sets out the principles that will be adopted by the Council in order for 
material to be safely stored on removable media so that the risk of loss or corruption 
to work data is low.

2.2 Removable media includes but is not limited to: 
USB memory sticks, memory cards, portable memory devices, CD / DVDs, diskettes 
and any other device that transfers data between systems, or stores electronic data 
separately from email or other applications.

2.3 Any person who intends to store Council data on removable media must abide by 
this Policy. This requirement devolves to Councillors, employees and agents of the 
Council, who may be held personally liable for any breach of the requirements of 
this policy.

2.4 Failure to comply with this policy could result in disciplinary action.Page 57



 Removable Media Policy Page 2 of 5

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$yhj32s5c.doc

3 Advice and Assistance

3.1 The Town Clerk and management team will ensure that everyone that is authorised 
to access the Authority’s information systems is aware of their obligations arising 
from this policy.

3.2 The Central Services team should be consulted over any hardware or system issues 
relating to access to the Town Council’s information systems.  

3.3 Those other than Town Council employees should seek advice and guidance from a 
competent person or specialist organisation in respect of any hardware or software 
issues.

4 Responsibilities

4.1 The Town Clerk and Heads of Service will ensure that all those who need to have 
access to Town Council information systems are aware of this policy, as well as any 
other Town Council policies which may apply.

5 Incident Management

5.1 It is the duty of all employees and agents of the Council to not allow storage media 
to be compromised in any way whist in their care or under their control. There must 
be immediate reporting of any misuse or irresponsible actions that affect work data 
or information, any loss of material, or actual, or suspected breaches in information 
security to the Senior Administration Officer.

5.2 It is the duty of all Councillors to report any actual or suspected breaches in 
information security to the Town Clerk.

6 Data Administration

6.1 Removable media should not be the only place where data created or obtained for 
work purposes is held, as data that is only held in one place and in one format is at 
much higher risk of being unavailable through loss, destruction or malfunction of 
equipment, than data which is routinely backed up.

6.2 Where removable media is used to transfer material between systems then copies 
of the data should also remain on the source system or computer, until the data is 
successfully transferred to another computer or system.

6.3 Where there is a business requirement to distribute information to third parties, then 
removable media must only be used when the file cannot be sent or is too large to 
be sent by email or other secure electronic means.

6.4 Transferring material to removable media is a snapshot of the data at the time it was 
saved to the media. Adequate labelling must be undertaken so as to easily identify 
the version of the data, as well as its content.

Page 58



 Removable Media Policy Page 3 of 5

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$yhj32s5c.doc

6.5 Files must be deleted from removable media, or the removable media destroyed, 
when the operational use of the material has been completed. The Council’s 
retention policy must be implemented by Councillors, employees, contractors and 
agents for all removable media.

7 Security

7.1 All storage media must be kept in an appropriately secure and safe environment that 
avoids physical risk, loss or electrical corruption of the business asset. Due to their 
small size there is a high risk of the removable media being mislaid lost or damaged, 
therefore special care is required to physically protect the device and the data. 
Anyone using removable media to transfer data must consider the most appropriate 
way to transport the device and be able to demonstrate that they took reasonable 
care to avoid damage or loss.

7.2 Virus Infections must be prevented from damaging the authority’s network and 
computers. Virus and malware checking software must be operational on both the 
machine from which the data is taken and the machine on to which the data is to be 
loaded. The data must be scanned by the virus checking software, before the media 
is loaded on to the receiving machine. 

7.3 Any memory stick used in connection with Council equipment or to store Council 
material should usually be Council owned. However work related data from external 
sources can be transferred to the Council network using memory sticks that are from 
trusted sources and have been checked using current anti-virus software. 

7.4 The Council will not provide support or administrator access for any non-council 
memory stick.

8 Use of removable media

8.1 Care must be taken over what data or information is transferred onto removable 
media. Only the data that is authorised and necessary to be transferred should be 
saved on to the device. 

8.2 Council material belongs to the Council and any equipment on which it is held 
should be under the control of the Council and not available to be used for other 
purposes that may compromise the data.

8.3 The person arranging the transfer of data must be authorised to make use of, or 
process that particular data. 

8.4 Whilst in transit or storage the data must be given appropriate security according to 
the type of data and its sensitivity.

8.5 Encryption must be applied to the data file unless there is no risk to the Council, 
other organisations or individuals from the data being lost whilst in transit or storage. 
If encryption is not available then password control must be applied if removable 
media must be used for the business purpose.

Page 59



 Removable Media Policy Page 4 of 5

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$yhj32s5c.doc

9 Faulty or Unneeded Storage Devices

9.1 Damaged or faulty media must not be used. The Senior Administration Officer must 
be consulted over any damaged equipment, peripherals or media.

9.2 All unneeded or faulty storage devices must be sent to the Senior Administration 
Officer who will securely remove the data before reallocating or disposing of the 
device.

10 Requests to suspend this policy

10.1 This Policy is designed to protect Council business data and to accommodate the 
needs of users. However, should aspects of this policy interfere with a valid 
business requirement; an application can be made to the Town Clerk for an 
amendment to this policy. An outline risk assessment should be submitted with the 
application.

11 Breach procedures

11.1 Users who do not adhere to this policy will be dealt with through the Council’s 
disciplinary process.

11.2 For Councillors, the Town Clerk will ensure appropriate action is taken.

11.3 Where external service providers, agents or contractors breach the policy, this 
should be addressed through contract arrangements.

11.4 Where the public have access to the Leighton-Linslade Town Council system, that 
access will be withdrawn if there is an actual or likely breach of information security, 
until adequate controls are in place.

12 Review and Revision

12.1 This policy will be reviewed periodically and revised according to developments in 
legislation, guidance, accepted good practice and operational use.

Page 60



 Removable Media Policy Page 5 of 5

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00000857\$yhj32s5c.doc

13 Key Messages for Staff

13.1 Data and information are valuable and must be protected.

13.2 Do not use removable media for material that is marked ‘restricted’ or above.

13.3 Only transfer data onto removable media, if you have the authority to do so.

13.4 All transfer arrangements carry a risk to the data.

13.5 Run the virus checking programme on the removable media each time it is 
connected to a computer.

13.6 Only use approved products for Council data.

13.7 Activate encryption on removable media wherever it is available and 
password protection if not available

13.8 Data should be available for automatic back up and not solely saved to 
removable media.

13.9 Delete files from removable media, or destroy the media, after the material 
has been used for its purpose.

13.10 Ask your manager if you are unsure.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

GENERAL PRIVACY NOTICE

Your personal data – what is it?
“Personal data” is any information about a living individual which allows them to be identified 
from that data (for example a name, photographs, videos, email address, or address).  
Identification can be directly using the data itself or by combining it with other information 
which helps to identify a living individual (e.g. a list of staff may contain personnel ID 
numbers rather than names but if you use a separate list of the ID numbers which give the 
corresponding names to identify the staff in the first list then the first list will also be treated 
as personal data).  The processing of personal data is governed by legislation relating to 
personal data which applies in the United Kingdom including the General Data Protection 
Regulation (the “GDPR) and other legislation relating to personal data and rights such as the 
Human Rights Act.
Who are we? 
This Privacy Notice is provided to you by Leighton-Linslade Town Council which is the data 
controller for your data. 
Other data controllers the council works with:
 [e.g. other data controllers, such as local authorities  
 Community groups
 Charities 
 Other not for profit entities 
 Contractors
 Credit reference agencies]
We may need to share your personal data we hold with them so that they can carry out their 
responsibilities to the council.  If we and the other data controllers listed above are 
processing your data jointly for the same purposes, then the council and the other data 
controllers may be “joint data controllers” which mean we are all collectively responsible to 
you for your data. Where each of the parties listed above are processing your data for their 
own independent purposes then each of us will be independently responsible to you and if 
you have any questions, wish to exercise any of your rights (see below) or wish to raise a 
complaint, you should do so directly to the relevant data controller.
A description of what personal data the council processes and for what purposes is set out in 
this Privacy Notice.  
The council will process some or all of the following personal data where necessary 
to perform its tasks: 
 Names, titles, and aliases, photographs;
 Contact details such as telephone numbers, addresses, and email addresses;
 Where they are relevant to the services provided by a council, or where you provide 

them to us, we may process information such as gender, age, marital status, 
nationality, education/work history, academic/professional qualifications, hobbies, 
family composition, and dependants;

 Where you pay for activities such as use of a council hall, financial identifiers such as 
bank account numbers, payment card numbers, payment/transaction identifiers, 
policy numbers, and claim numbers;

Page 63



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

GENERAL PRIVACY NOTICE

Page 2 of 5

 The personal data we process may include sensitive or other special categories of 
personal data such as criminal convictions, racial or ethnic origin, mental and 
physical health, details of injuries, medication/treatment received, political beliefs, 
trade union affiliation, genetic data, biometric data, data concerning and sexual life or 
orientation.

How we use sensitive personal data  
 We may process sensitive personal data including, as appropriate:

 your racial or ethnic origin or religious or similar information in order to 
monitor compliance with equal opportunities legislation;

 in order to comply with legal requirements and obligations to third parties.

 These types of data are described in the GDPR as “Special categories of data” and 
require higher levels of protection. We need to have further justification for collecting, 
storing and using this type of personal data. 

 We may process special categories of personal data in the following circumstances:
 In limited circumstances, with your explicit written consent.
 Where we need to carry out our legal obligations.
 Where it is needed in the public interest.

 Less commonly, we may process this type of personal data where it is needed in 
relation to legal claims or where it is needed to protect your interests (or someone 
else’s interests) and you are not capable of giving your consent, or where you have 
already made the information public. 

Do we need your consent to process your sensitive personal data?
 In limited circumstances, we may approach you for your written consent to allow us 

to process certain sensitive personal data.  If we do so, we will provide you with full 
details of the personal data that we would like and the reason we need it, so that you 
can carefully consider whether you wish to consent. 

The council will comply with data protection law. This says that the personal data we 
hold about you must be:
 Used lawfully, fairly and in a transparent way.
 Collected only for valid purposes that we have clearly explained to you and not used 

in any way that is incompatible with those purposes.
 Relevant to the purposes we have told you about and limited only to those purposes.
 Accurate and kept up to date.
 Kept only as long as necessary for the purposes we have told you about.
 Kept and destroyed securely including ensuring that appropriate technical and 

security measures are in place to protect your personal data to protect personal data 
from loss, misuse, unauthorised access and disclosure.

We use your personal data for some or all of the following purposes:
 To deliver public services including to understand your needs to provide the services 

that you request and to understand what we can do for you and inform you of other 
relevant services;

 To confirm your identity to provide some services;
 To contact you by post, email, telephone or using social media (e.g., Facebook, 

Twitter);

Page 64



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

GENERAL PRIVACY NOTICE

Page 3 of 5

 To help us to build up a picture of how we are performing; 
 To prevent and detect fraud and corruption in the use of public funds and where 

necessary for the law enforcement functions;
 To enable us to meet all legal and statutory obligations and powers including any 

delegated functions;
 To carry out comprehensive safeguarding procedures (including due diligence and 

complaints handling) in accordance with best safeguarding practice from time to time 
with the aim of ensuring that all children and adults-at-risk are provided with safe 
environments and generally as necessary to protect individuals from harm or injury;

 To promote the interests of the council; 
 To maintain our own accounts and records;
 To seek your views, opinions or comments;
 To notify you of changes to our facilities, services, events and staff, councillors and 

other role holders; 
 To send you communications which you have requested and that may be of interest 

to you.  These may include information about campaigns, appeals, other new 
projects or initiatives;

 To process relevant financial transactions including grants and payments for goods 
and services supplied to the council

 To allow the statistical analysis of data so we can plan the provision of services.

Our processing may also include the use of CCTV systems for the prevention and 
prosecution of crime. 

What is the legal basis for processing your personal data?
The council is a public authority and has certain powers and obligations.  Most of your 
personal data is processed for compliance with a legal obligation which includes the 
discharge of the council’s statutory functions and powers.  Sometimes when exercising 
these powers or duties it is necessary to process personal data of residents or people using 
the council’s services.   We will always take into account your interests and rights.  This 
Privacy Notice sets out your rights and the council’s obligations to you.
We may process personal data if it is necessary for the performance of a contract with you, 
or to take steps to enter into a contract.  An example of this would be processing your data in 
connection with the use of sports facilities, or the acceptance of an allotment garden tenancy
Sometimes the use of your personal data requires your consent. We will first obtain your 
consent to that use.

Sharing your personal data
This section provides information about the third parties with whom the council may share 
your personal data.  These third parties have an obligation to put in place appropriate 
security measures and will be responsible to you directly for the manner in which they 
process and protect your personal data. It is likely that we will need to share your data with 
some or all of the following (but only where necessary):

 The data controllers listed above under the heading “Other data controllers the 
council works with”;

 Our agents, suppliers and contractors. For example, we may ask a commercial 
provider to publish or distribute newsletters on our behalf, or to maintain our 
database software;

Page 65



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

GENERAL PRIVACY NOTICE

Page 4 of 5

 On occasion, other local authorities or not for profit bodies with which we are carrying 
out joint ventures e.g. in relation to facilities or events for the community. 

How long do we keep your personal data?
We will keep some records permanently if we are legally required to do so.  We may keep 
some other records for an extended period of time. For example, it is currently best practice 
to keep financial records for a minimum period of 8 years to support HMRC audits or provide 
tax information.  We may have legal obligations to retain some data in connection with our 
statutory obligations as a public authority.  The council is permitted to retain data in order to 
defend or pursue claims.  In some cases the law imposes a time limit for such claims (for 
example 3 years for personal injury claims or 6 years for contract claims).  We will retain 
some personal data for this purpose as long as we believe it is necessary to be able to 
defend or pursue a claim.  In general, we will endeavour to keep data only for as long as we 
need it.  This means that we will delete it when it is no longer needed.

Your rights and your personal data  
You have the following rights with respect to your personal data:
When exercising any of the rights listed below, in order to process your request, we may 
need to verify your identity for your security.  In such cases we will need you to respond with 
proof of your identity before you can exercise these rights.
1) The right to access personal data we hold on you
 At any point you can contact us to request the personal data we hold on you as well 

as why we have that personal data, who has access to the personal data and where 
we obtained the personal data from.  Once we have received your request we will 
respond within one month. 

 There are no fees or charges for the first request but additional requests for the same 
personal data or requests which are manifestly unfounded or excessive may be 
subject to an administrative fee. 

2) The right to correct and update the personal data we hold on you
 If the data we hold on you is out of date, incomplete or incorrect, you can inform us 

and your data will be updated. 
3) The right to have your personal data erased
 If you feel that we should no longer be using your personal data or that we are 

unlawfully using your personal data, you can request that we erase the personal data 
we hold. 

 When we receive your request we will confirm whether the personal data has been 
deleted or the reason why it cannot be deleted (for example because we need it for 
to comply with a legal obligation). 

4) The right to object to processing of your personal data or to restrict it to 
certain purposes only

 You have the right to request that we stop processing your personal data or ask us to 
restrict processing. Upon receiving the request we will contact you and let you know 
if we are able to comply or if we have a legal obligation to continue to process your 
data. 

5) The right to data portability
 You have the right to request that we transfer some of your data to another controller. 

We will comply with your request, where it is feasible to do so, within one month of 
receiving your request.

Page 66



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

GENERAL PRIVACY NOTICE

Page 5 of 5

6) The right to withdraw your consent to the processing at any time for any 
processing of data to which consent was obtained

 You can withdraw your consent easily by telephone, email, or by post (see Contact 
Details below).

7) The right to lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner’s Office. 
 You can contact the Information Commissioners Office on 0303 123 1113 or via 

email https://ico.org.uk/global/contact-us/email/ or at the Information Commissioner's 
Office, Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire SK9 5AF.

Transfer of Data Abroad
Any personal data transferred to countries or territories outside the European Economic 
Area (“EEA”) will only be placed on systems complying with measures giving equivalent 
protection of personal rights either through international agreements or contracts approved 
by the European Union. Our website is also accessible from overseas so on occasion some 
personal data (for example in a newsletter) may be accessed from overseas. 

Further processing
If we wish to use your personal data for a new purpose, not covered by this Privacy Notice, 
then we will provide you with a new notice explaining this new use prior to commencing the 
processing and setting out the relevant purposes and processing conditions.  Where and 
whenever necessary, we will seek your prior consent to the new processing.

Changes to this notice
We keep this Privacy Notice under regular review and we will place any updates on the 
Town Council website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk   This Notice was last updated in 
March 2018.

Contact Details
Please contact us if you have any questions about this Privacy Notice or the personal data 
we hold about you or to exercise all relevant rights, queries or complaints at:
The Data Controller, Leighton-Linslade Town Council, The White House, Hockliffe Street, 
Leighton Buzzard, Beds LU7 1HD
Tel: 01525 631920 
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

The Town Council is registered with the Information Commissioners Office (registration 
Z5050813). 

Page 67

http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Data Protection: Subject Access Requests Procedure

Background

Data protection legislation effective from May 2018 requires that “data controllers provide 
right of access to personal data where data subjects have made a request”.  Data subjects 
are entitled to obtain confirmation that their data is being processed and to request access to 
their personal data.  There are financial penalties in failing to respond to a Subject Access 
Request. 
Councillors and managers must ensure that the staff they manage are aware of and follow 
this guidance.  

Scope

This procedure applies to all areas of Town Council business regardless of service or 
location. 

Key Stages

1. RECEIPT: On receipt of a subject access request you must complete a Subject 
Access Request form and forward it immediately to the Head of Democratic and 
Central Services to be logged. 

2. VERIFY: We must correctly identify whether a request has been made under the 
Data Protection legislation. We must respond within one calendar month after 
accepting the request as valid. 

3. SEARCH: A member of staff, and as appropriate, councillor, who receives a request 
to locate and supply personal data relating to a SAR must make a full exhaustive 
search of the records to which they have access. 

4. PROVISION OF DATA: All the personal data that has been requested must be 
provided unless an exemption can be applied.  Subject Access Requests must be 
undertaken free of charge to the requestor unless the legislation permits reasonable 
fees to be charged.

5. COMPLETION: Where a requestor is not satisfied with a response to a SAR, the 
council must manage this as a complaint. 

Procedure

1. A Subject Access Request should be made in writing to be valid. This can be in any 
written format including email. Requestors do not have to complete a specific request 
form. If a request is made verbally, depending on the circumstances, it may be 
reasonable to respond. 

2. Upon receipt of a request, you should start filling out a Subject Access Request form. 
This is an internal document only, designed to track the progress of the request from 
receipt until completion. 

3. Notify the Head of Democratic and Central Services upon receipt of a request.  A 
database will be maintained allowing the council to report on the volume of requests 
and compliance against the statutory timescale.

4. If necessary, clarify with the requestor what personal data they need. 

Page 69



5. The requestor must supply their address and valid evidence to prove their identity. 
The council accepts the following forms of identification (* These documents must be 
dated in the past 12 months, +These documents must be dated in the past 3 
months): 
• Current UK/European Economic Area Passport
• UK Photocard Driving Licence (Full or Provisional)
• Firearms Licence / Shotgun Certificate
• EEA National Identity Card
• Full UK Paper Driving Licence
• State Benefits Entitlement Document*
• State Pension Entitlement Document*
• HMRC Tax Credit Document*
• Local Authority Benefit Document*
• State/Local Authority Educational Grant Document*
• HMRC Tax Notification Document
• Disabled Driver’s Pass
• Financial Statement issued by bank, building society or credit card company+
• Judiciary Document such as a Notice of Hearing, Summons or Court Order
• Utility bill for supply of gas, electric, water or telephone landline+
• Most recent Mortgage Statement
• Most recent council Tax Bill/Demand or Statement
• Tenancy Agreement
• Building Society Passbook which shows a transaction in the last 3 months 

and your address

6. If a third party is making a request on behalf of an individual, for example a solicitor, 
you need to be sure that the third party has authorisation to act on their behalf. This 
might be a Power of Attorney or other written authority. 

7. Consider the information requested. Do we hold personal data about the applicant? If 
not, we have no obligation to provide information. Is the information requested 
reasonable, or is it excessive? If the request is excessive or complex, we may need 
to extend the response timeframe. In the case of an extension, we should notify our 
DPO. 

8. Once the above steps have been completed, discuss the request with the Town 
Clerk or a Head of Service to verify that it is a valid SAR. If the request is agreed to 
be valid, proceed to step 9. If the request is deemed invalid or the information 
requested cannot be supplied for reasons of exemption, we need to communicate 
this to the requestor. The draft response should be approved by the Town Clerk or a 
Head of Service, as well as the Council’s Data Protection Officer, prior to sending to 
the requestor. 

9. Depending on the degree to which personal data is organised and structured, you will 
need to search emails (including archived emails and those that have been deleted 
but are still recoverable), Word documents, spreadsheets, databases, systems, 
removable media (for example, memory sticks, floppy disks, CDs), tape recordings, 
paper records in relevant filing systems etc. which your area is responsible for or 
owns. You may then also need to request that colleagues search their own data. 

Page 70



10. You must not withhold personal data because you believe it will be misunderstood; 
instead, you should provide an explanation with the personal data. You must provide 
the personal data in an “intelligible form”, which includes giving an explanation of any 
codes, acronyms and complex terms. The personal data must be supplied in a 
permanent form except where the person agrees or where it is impossible or would 
involve undue effort. You may be able to agree with the requester that they will view 
the personal data on screen or inspect files on our premises. You must redact any 
exempt personal data from the released documents and explain why that personal 
data is being withheld.

11. When responding to a complaint, we must advise the requestor that they may 
complain to the Information Commissioners Office (“ICO”) if they remain unhappy 
with the outcome.

12. Where a Subject Access Request may require records to be searched to which you 
do not have security access, you will need to escalate the request to your Head of 
Service who will determine the appropriate course of action. 

13. Any draft responses to a Subject Access Request must be viewed and approved by a 
Head of Service prior to sending to the Data Subject.

14. Once approved, the final response and the completed SAR form should be saved on 
the Network in the appropriate folder for Data Protection/Subject Access Requests. 
This will be retained securely only until it is clear that the Data Subject is either 
satisfied with the response or intends to take further action. 

15. Notify the Head of Democratic and Central Services of the date the response was 
sent in order that the Council may monitor and record its compliance with data 
protection laws. 

16. Once closed, SAR records will be anonymised and retained only for statistical 
purposes, with all other information being deleted. 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Data Protection: Subject Access Request form

(please use in conjunction with Subject Access Request Procedure)

Process to Action
Name of requester

Method of communication

Email Address
Phone number
Postal Address

Date Subject Access Request made
Is the request made under the Data Protection Legislation Yes No
Date Subject Access Request action to be completed by
(One month after receipt time limit)
Date Head of Democratic & Central Services notified of SAR

Identification must be proven from the below list:

Current UK/EEA Passport
UK Photo card Driving Licence (Full or Provisional)
EEA National Identity Card
Full UK Paper Driving Licence
State Benefits Entitlement Document
State Pension Entitlement Document
HMRC Tax Credit Document
Local Authority Benefit Document
State/Local Authority Educational Grant Document
HMRC Tax Notification Document
Disabled Driver’s Pass
Financial Statement issued by bank, building society or credit card company
Utility bill for supply of gas, electric, water or telephone landline
A recent Mortgage Statement
A recent council Tax Bill/Demand or Statement
Tenancy Agreement
Building Society Passbook which shows a transaction in the last 3 months and 
their address

Is the request excessive (timescale may need to be extended)?
( An extension of another two months is permissible provided it is 
communicated to the subject within the one month period)

Yes No

Page 73



Is the request considered unfounded? Note: the burden of demonstrating that 
a request is unfounded and should be refused falls upon us and therefore no 
request should be refused without authorisation from the DPO. 

Yes No

Verification sought from the Town Clerk/a Head of Service that the Subject 
Access request is valid and the request is to be actioned.

Yes No

OR - Verification sought from the Town Clerk/a Head of Service that the 
Council cannot provide the information requested and the request therefore 
cannot be actioned

Yes No

Request to be actioned? If yes, communicate this to the requestor and advise 
them of the date by which they can expect to receive the information. 

Yes No

Fee to be charged?
(Subject Access requests must be undertaken free of charge to a requester 
unless the legislation permits a reasonable charge)

Yes No

If the request is to be refused, action to be taken and by whom.

If the request is to be actioned, action to be taken and by whom.

Changes requested to data/ or removal

Draft response approved by Town Clerk/a Head of Service
Yes No

Date response sent and method of communication

Head of Democratic & Central Services advised that request completed
Complaint Process
(Where a requestor is not satisfied with a response to a SAR, the council must 
manage this as a complaint)
Date complaint received by requested and details of the complaint

Date complaint completed and outcome 

Page 74



Categories of Data to Check

Data Filing 
Cabinets 

Network 
drives

Emails Checked Corrected
/Deleted

Actioned by 

HR
Finance
Democratic Services

- Mayor
- Meetings 

Admin
- Websites
- Social media
- Bookings

Planning & Transport 
Cultural & Economic 
Services:

- Markets
- Events
- General

Grounds & 
Environmental Services

- Allotments
- Cemeteries
- General

Partnership
TACTIC
Astral Park
Central files
Archives

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



2018-2021

Tree Management 
Policy 

Page 77



1

Tree Management Policy 2018-2021

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The parish trees are of immense environmental and aesthetical value to the Town and its 

residents. They brighten up our parks and open spaces, provide a habitat for wildlife, act as 
the Town lungs and even help to reduce the rising temperatures caused by climate change. 
Leighton-Linslade Town Council recognises these benefits, seeking to preserve healthy 
trees and encourage the planting of new trees where possible. 

1.2 Whilst the majority live and grow without incident, a number of trees located in densely 
populated areas pose challenges and risks that need to be managed. This policy outlines 
how we intend to increase the number of trees across the parish, how we intend to manage 
the tree stock effectively, and how we reduce the risk that certain trees pose to the public. 

 
1.3 The Town Council is only responsible for trees positioned on land owned by the Town 

Council. 
 
1.4 This tree policy does not cover trees in private ownership which are outside Leighton-

Linslade Town Council’s control. Trees in private ownership are the responsibility of the 
private landowner. The policy also does not cover Tree Preservation Orders, Conservation 
Areas or high hedge legislation which is administered by the Central Bedfordshire Council’s 
Planning Department. 

 

Page 78



2

Tree Management Policy 2018-2021

2.0 Aim of the Tree Management Policy 
 
2.1 The overall aim of the tree policy is to ensure that our tree stock is retained, enhanced and 

increased in the most proactive manner whilst ensuring the health, safety and well-being of 
the public and property.  

 
3.0 Management of the Council’s Trees 
 
3.1 Leighton- Linslade Town Council intends to undertake a rolling 3 year inspection programme 

of its trees. This information is held on a database of trees and plotted on our geographical 
information system.

 
3.2 This inspection programme is designed to assess the trees’ condition and health whilst 

highlighting any work that may be required to ensure the tree is retained in the best possible 
condition. 

 
3.3 If a tree is highlighted to be dead, dying, diseased or dangerous and is posing an 

unacceptable risk to public safety, it will be identified for felling. 

3.4 The decision to prescribe work to a tree is calculated on a risk basis. Risk is calculated 
through the process of a visual tree assessment (Department of Environment, ‘Research for 
Amenity Trees No.4 The Body Language of Trees’). An evaluation of the tree takes into 
account many factors including: 

 
• Size 
• Species 
• Presence of structural decay or defects 
• Relationship of any fungal infection relative to species 

 
3.5 All these factors are considered in relation to the potential target, the damage that could be 

caused if the tree were to fail and the likelihood of it doing so.  
 
3.6 If defects are observed, further detailed examination may be carried out using a range of 

decay detection equipment before any decision is taken regarding the trees future 
management. 

 
3.7 If a contractor, rather than the Council's own Officers, recommends a tree for felling the 

Council’s Qualified Officer will inspect this tree again prior to the felling taking place to ensure 
the Officer is confident that this is the correct decision.  

3.8 In conjunction with the inspection programme, the Council will maintain a rolling maintenance 
programme carrying out cyclical works and works highlighted by an appointed inspector or 
the Qualified Officer. This rolling programme will reduce avoidable risks and issues, for 
example: 

 
• Vehicle and pedestrian collision 
• The removal of identifiable risks 

Page 79



3

Tree Management Policy 2018-2021

• The removal or pruning of trees where its relationship to a property causes 
excessive problems. 
• Obstructing footpaths or driveways by branches or epicormic growth 

 
3.9 Felling and or pruning will not be undertaken for the following reasons: 
 

• Blocking light 
• Television or satellite signals 
• Residents do not ‘like’ the tree 
• Leaf or fruit drop 
• Unproven allegations of subsidence or direct damage 
• Construction of dropped kerbs or new driveways 
• Perceived threat 
• The tree’s size; ‘its got too big’ 
• The tree ‘ moves in the wind’ 
• Bird droppings 
• Aphids 
• Individuals medical conditions 
• Erection of fencing, walls, play areas and sports pitches 

 
3.10 The above is not an exhaustive list but is representative of a large number of customer 

enquiries. Further to an inspection the Qualified Officer may agree to undertake a variety of 
pruning operations to remedy complaints provided that the long-term health, appearance, or 
potential development of the tree is not affected. 

 
3.11 As part of good arboricultural management the removal of trees will be carried out when the 

removal will benefit the long-term development of adjacent better quality trees i.e. woodland 
and copse management. Furthermore, formative pruning may be carried out following the 
Qualified Officer’s inspections, for example: 

 
• Removal of crossing, weak or competitive branches 
• Crown balancing 
• Dead wooding 
• Crown lifting 
• Crown thinning 

 
3.12 All waste from tree surgery will be recycled, being used in a variety of situations, including: 

mulches for shrub beds, power station fuel, firewood, habitat piles or dead standing timber 
where suitable, thereby avoiding the use of landfill sites. 

 
4.0 Wildlife and Conservation 
 
4.1 Tree works shall be carried out whilst ensuring adherence to all wildlife and conservation 

laws are adhered to including: 
 

• Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (amended 1995) 
• The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981(England and Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2004
• Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000

Page 80



4

Tree Management Policy 2018-2021

• The Town and Country Planning (Trees) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2008
• The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
• The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) (Amendment) Regulations 2007
• The Hedgerows Regulations 1997

4.2 The Council recognises the different levels of risk represented by a hazard tree when it is 
located in different sites and will manage them in accordance with Department of 
Environment Research for Amenity Trees No. 7 ‘Principals of Tree Hazard Assessment and 
Management’.  

 
4.3 Higher levels of risk will be acceptable in locations where there is a lower footfall e.g. middle 

of a woodland area as apposed to a highway situation. This will allow the retention of veteran 
trees without undue risk whilst encouraging bio-diversity and habitat retention. 

 
5.0 Communicating with the public and members 
 
5.1 The Council will inform Ward Councillors and appropriate ‘Friends Groups’ of any major tree 

works such as pollarding or felling before any works are carried out in their ward/park. If there 
is a large number of trees to fell in one location the Council will also erect notices to inform 
the public of the proposed works.  

 
5.2 In the event of emergency health and safety work that must be carried out immediately (e.g. 

storm conditions), an Officer will notify Ward Councillors retrospectively. 
 
5.3 Felling is the last resort and will only be carried out when deemed necessary by the Qualified 

Officer. However, public safety is paramount and for this reason the public will be informed 
of tree works, via Ward Councillors and notices, but will not be consulted for approval. 

 
6.0 Council Trees and Development 
 
6.1 Requests for tree works and/or removal of trees from Council owned land to allow 

development shall be considered by the elected members as part of the decision as to 
whether to approve the planning application. Officers will not take this decision, although 
advice will be provided to the elected members. 

 
6.2 Members are encouraged to consider when dealing with planning applications for privately 

owned land, whether there are Council owned trees on adjacent plots that may be affected 
by the development before approving the application (e.g. for site access, dropped kerbs or 
storage of materials). 

 
7.0 Subsidence 
 
7.1 Subsidence is a complex interaction between the soil, building, climate and vegetation that 

occurs on highly shrinkable clay soils when the soil supporting all or part of a building dries 
out and consequently shrinks, resulting in part of a building moving downwards. Trees lose 
water from the leaves through transpiration that is replenished by water taken from the soil 
by the roots. If the tree takes more water from the soil than is replaced by rainfall the soil will 
gradually dry out. Trees have a large root system and they can dry the soil to a greater depth, 
critically below the level of foundations. The amount of water trees can remove from the soil 

Page 81



5

Tree Management Policy 2018-2021

can vary between different species. This policy seeks to set out the Council’s response to 
subsidence claims against its own trees. The opposite of subsidence is a process called 
‘heave’ and this occurs as a shrinkable clay soil re-hydrates (becomes wet again) and begins 
to increase in volume exerting upward pressure. Heave can also cause damage to buildings 
and is just as undesirable as subsidence but occurs less frequently.  

 
7.2 All claims regarding subsidence will be referred to the Council’s Insurer.
 
7.3 The insurers for the claimant or their consultants must provide evidence of ALL the following 

items before any works are carried out to Council owned trees. 
 

• Physical damage 
• Presence of live roots of a suitable species 
• Seasonal movement or variation of the damage during different seasons. 

 
7.4 If the above evidence is provided, the Council will adhere to the advice supplied by insurers 

with regard to what, if any, works are required to the trees. If evidence is insufficient any 
claim will be dismissed. 

 
8.0 Replacement Trees 
 
8.1 It is the Council's policy that every tree felled should be replaced to ensure that over the 

years the Town retains its tree stock for future generations, although it is recognised that it 
is not always practical or prudent to replace a tree in the same location or with the same 
species that was previously planted. 

8.2 The Council will work proactively to manage or facilitate replacement tree planting, which 
may include but not be limited to, working with the community and friends groups, 
considering new planting schemes, including memorial trees, community woodlands and by 
encouraging funding from new developments for tree planting through working with the 
Planning Department.

Page 82



6

Tree Management Policy 2018-2021

Appendix 1 
 
Procedure - Arboricultural Works on Trees. 
 
 

1. Before any work is undertaken trees will be inspected by the Qualified Officer, or 
suitably qualified independent surveyors.  An inspection sheet must be filled in and filed at 
the time of inspection. 

 
2. If any work is required to any tree(s) the Qualified Officer must issue a formal work 
instruction. This instruction must include the following information: 

a. Location of tree(s) 
b. Where the tree is difficult to locate a small dot of paint is to be sprayed on the 
base of the trunk 
c. Type of tree(s) (Genus and Species or Common Name) 
d. Details of the work required to the tree(s) 
e. Priority of works e.g. One Month 
f. Site Specific Risk Assessments 
g. Location Maps from Council’s G.I.S mapping system clearly showing the 
location of the tree(s). Two plans to be produced where necessary a) Close up 
including ID number and b) a generic site plan to provide easily identifiable locations 

 
3. If the tree(s) require felling then the following tasks must be completed: 

a. Inform Ward Councillors and appropriate Friends Groups at the first 
opportunity of the felling works and timescales. 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 172

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 20 JUNE 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman
A Brandham
S Cotter
A Dodwell (Chair)

          Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Central and Democratic 
Services)

Members of the public:     0

366/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors J Davies, D Perham 
and S Ward (formerly Cursons). 

367/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.  

368/P PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no questions from members of the public. 

369/P MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held on 30 May 2018.

Minute reference 363/P: the request was made that the points made regarding 
land at Clipstone Park should be followed up with Central Bedfordshire Council.

Minute reference 364/P: it was noted that the jet patching work had taken place 
and that further improvements to the road surfaces were anticipated for later in 
the year.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 30 May 2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly.

370/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee reviewed applications received up until 15 June 2018. 

Page 85



Planning and Transport Committee 20 JUNE 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 173

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/02059/RM; however, the 
Town Council would express concerns regarding potential parking on the 
new road prior to its formal adoption by Highways and would request that 
consideration be given to how best to prevent this from the outset. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/01654/RM (Land at 
Clipstone Park) but that the Town Council would make the following 
comments: 
- That given the proximity to Leighton-Linslade, the Town Council would 

expect that provision is made within the S.106 agreement for a 
contribution to the town centre/public realm enhancements

- That construction traffic should access the site via the bypass/A5, not 
through the town

- That consideration be given to installing a pedestrian crossing on 
Hockliffe Road in order to encourage walking and improve highway 
safety

- That proposed open spaces should include provision of play equipment 
for young families

- That the Town Council would urge delivery of the eastern link road as 
early as possible 

- That careful consideration be afforded to the most appropriate use of 
the land designated for “future development”. Given the proximity of an 
existing community facility at Meadow Way as well as the proposed 
additional community facility to be located further north on the 
Clipstone Park development, it might be considered that this site be 
better used for play area/retail provision. 

RESOLVED to recommend that no objection be made to the following 
applications:

1. CB/18/02075 55 CLIPSTONE CRESCENT
2. CB/18/01699 173 KNAVES HILL, LINSLADE
3. CB/18/01800 99 STOKE ROAD, LINSLADE
4. CB/18/01757 39 ROCK LANE, LINSLADE
5. CB/18/01618 2B MILEBUSH, LINSLADE
6. CB/18/01854 25 THE MARTINS DRIVE, LINSLADE
7. CB/18/01829/ADV TESCO STORES, VIMY ROAD, LINSLADE
8. CB/18/01442 37 TAYLORS RIDE
9. CB/18/01755 WOODCOTE, 1 ASHWELL STREET
10. CB/18/01706 1 ROTHSCHILD ROAD, LINSLADE
11. CB/18/01770 60 REDWOOD GLADE
12. CB/18/02039 86 HIGHFIELD ROAD
13. CB/18/01991 TOWER HOUSE, STANBRIDGE ROAD
14. CB/18/01938 385 DERWENT ROAD, LINSLADE
15. CB/18/02024 2 CAMBERTON ROAD, LINSLADE
16. CB/18/01901 151 CAMBERTON ROAD, LINSLADE

RESOLVED to note the following applications for works to trees: 

1. CB/TRE/18/00167 13 TAYLORS RIDE
2. CB/TRE/18/00172 2 LOVENT DRIVE

Page 86



Planning and Transport Committee 20 JUNE 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 174

3. CB/TRE/18/00181 21 REDWOOD GLADE

364/P TRANSPORT MATTERS

The Committee received a copy of email correspondence from a local resident 
regarding the noise properties of the road surfacing on the Linslade Western 
Bypass. It was agreed to pass this on to Central Bedfordshire Council to either 
respond or for them to liaise with Buckinghamshire County Council. 

365/P      INFORMATION ITEMS

No information items had been received. 

The meeting closed at 2004 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 20 JUNE 2018.

Chair                      11 JULY 2018 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Leighton-Linslade Town Council

Statement of Accounts

(Not Subject to Audit)

31 March 2018

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



Page No(s).

1 Council Information

2 Income and Expenditure Account (unaudited)

3 Income and Expenditure Account and Annual Return Reconciliation (unaudited)

4 Balance Sheet

5 to 7 Notes to the Accounts

8 Annual Return- Accounting Statement Subject to Audit

Index

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

31 March 2018

Page 94



Leighton-Linslade Town Council

Council Information

Town Mayor
Syed Rahman

Councillors
Ray Berry

David Bowater
Alan Brandham
Carol Chambers
Stephen Cotter
Karen Cursons
Sarah Cursons
James Davies

Amanda Dodwell
 Kenneth Ferguson

Mark Freeman
Stephen Jones

Farzana Kharawala
Tony Morris

Clive Palmer
Carole Perham
David Perham

Gordon Perham
Brian Spurr

Ewan Wallace

Clerk to the Council and Responsible Financial Officer
Mark Saccoccio

Auditors
Mazars

1

Page 95



2017 2018 2018 2018

£ £ £ £

Net Gross Net 

Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

DIRECT SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC

Central Services to the Public

(236,935) Community Projects (366,592) 105,422      (261,170)

(59,376) Grants and Donations (62,272) -                  (62,272)

(151,354) Tactic Youth Centre (175,051) 4,409          (170,642)

(513,284) Grounds & Environmental Services (739,224) 379,544      (359,681)

(73,892) Astral Park Sport and Community Centre (155,376) 61,999        (93,377)

(165,005) Community Services (207,207) 83,697        (123,510)

(214,674) Use of Reserves (328,246) -                    (328,246)

DEMOCRATIC, CIVIC AND CENTRAL COSTS

(387,436) Central Costs (402,901) 13,080        (389,821)

(81,287) The White House (87,317) 6,854          (80,463)

(44,711) Democratic Costs (55,083) -                  (55,083)

(50,061) Other Costs and Income (65,539) 12,270        (53,269)

(1,978,015) (2,644,809) 667,275      (1,977,534)

2,068,093      Annual Precept 2,115,211    

-                     Precept Support Grant -                  

(170,843) Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (116,004)

(80,765) Net Surplus (Deficit) for the year 21,673

Balance Movement Balance

April 2017 for Year March 2018

General Fund 736,819       21,673 758,493       

Earmarked Reserves 1,258,988    116,004 1,374,992    

1,995,807    137,677 2,133,485    

Box 1 Box 7

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

Income and Expenditure Account (Unaudited)

31 March 2018

2 

Reserve Movements

Page 96



2017 Note 2018 2018
£ £ £

Fixed Assets 2

Tangible fixed assets

2,103,225  Land and Buildings 2,185,426   

1,578,011  Vehicles and  Equipment 1,737,498   

627,135     Infrastructure Assets 707,258      

258,267     Community Assets 258,267      

4,888,449 

4,566,638  

Current Assets

136,971     Debtors 5 104,672      

2,110,010  Cash at Bank and In-hand 2,193,645   

2,246,981  2,298,317   

Current Liabilities

251,173     Creditors and accrued expenses 6 164,831      

251,173     164,831      

1,995,808  Net Current Assets 2,133,486                

6,562,446  Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 7,021,935                

Long Term Liabilities

307,173     Long Term Borrowing 7 255,650                   

6,255,273  6,766,285                

Financed by:

Reserves available to the Council

1,258,988  Funds Earmarked for Future Projects 8 1,374,992   

736,819     General Reserve 758,493      2,133,485                

1,995,807  
Reserves Not Available to Council:

Represents the Council's Net Investment in Fixed 

Assets less Outstanding Loans 4,632,800                

4,259,466  Capital Financing Account

6,255,273  6,766,285                

These accounts have been approved by the Council.

…………………………………. …………………………………

Chair, Town Mayor Responsible Financial Officer

Date: …………………………. Date: …………………………

4

Leighton Linslade Town Council

Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

31 March 2018

Page 97



Box 2 Box 3 Box 4 Box5 Box 6
Annual Return Box Numbers Other Total Staff Loans Other Total

Precept Income Costs Repaid Costs
Direct Services

Central Services to the Public -                  -                   -                 -                 -                -                 -                  

Community Projects -                  105,422       105,422     138,033      228,559     366,592       

Grants and Donations -                  -                 62,272       62,272         

Tactic Youth Centre -                  4,409           4,409         149,615      25,436       175,051       

Grounds & Environmental Services -                  379,544       379,544     352,906      386,318     739,224       

Astral Park Sport and Community Centre 61,999         61,999       103,538      51,838       155,376       

Community Services -                  83,697         83,697       70,597        136,611     207,207       

Use of Reserves -                  -                   -                 328,246     328,246       

Central Costs -                  13,080         13,080       289,343      113,558     402,901       

The White House -                  6,854           6,854         87,317       87,317         

Democratic Costs -                  -                   -                 46,513        8,570         55,083         

Other Costs and Income -                  12,270         12,270       65,539      -                 65,539         

Annual Precept 2,115,211   -                   2,115,211  

Totals Carried to Annual Return 2,115,211   667,275       2,782,486  1,150,545   65,539      1,428,725  2,644,809    

31 March 2017 2,068,093 373,684 2,441,777 1,128,128 66,963 1,156,607 2,351,698 

3

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

Income And Expenditure Account and Annual Return Reconciliation (Unaudited)

For the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Democratic, Management and Civic

Income Expenditure

Page 98



Leighton-Linslade Town Council

1 Employees

The average weekly number of employees during the year was as follows:
2018 2017

Number Number
Full-time 24 22
Part-time 12 20

36 42

All staff are paid within nationally agreed pay scales

Band

£50,000 to £59,999 0 0

£60,000 to £69,999 0 0

£70,000 to £79,999 1 1

2 Freehold Vehicles and Infrastructure Community Total

Land and Equipment Assets Assets

Buildings

Cost £ £ £

1st April 2017 2,103,226 1,578,010 627,138 258,265 4,566,639

Additions 88,200 206,993 80,123 375,316

Disposals (6,000) (47,505) (53,505)

31st March 2018 2,185,426 1,737,498 707,261 258,265 4,888,450

3 Financing of Capital Expenditure 2017 2016

£   £   

The following capital expenditure during the year:

Fixed Assets purchased 375,316 143,856

375,316 143,856

was financed by:

Grant Funding 73,433 -

Finance Lease - 78,608

Part Exchange Allowance - 28,500

Precept and Revenue Income 301,883 36,748

375,316 143,856

31 March 2018

Notes to the Accounts (Unaudited)

5

Number of employees whose remuneration excluding employers pension contributions was over £50,000 in bands of £10,000 

was:

2017/2018 2016/2017

Although classified as capital expenditure, certain minor equipment purchases are not included above as they are not material in 

overall value.

Page 99



Leighton-Linslade Town Council

31 March 2018

Notes to the Accounts (Unaudited)

4 Assets Purchased in Year

Vehicles and Equipment

Gazebo 32,115

Canopies/Umbrellas 32,388

Market Equipment 8,930

People Counter 6,645

Dennis Cutter 9,954

File Server 9,565

New Play Equipment 107,396 206,993

Infrastructure Assets

Car Park Extension Astral Park 51,213

Security Bollards 23,311

Benches and Litter Bins 5,599 80,123

Land and Buildings

Mausoleum 88,200

5 Debtors 2018 2017

£   £   

Debtors and Prepayments 54,467             86,766            

V A T Recoverable 50,205             50,205            

104,672           136,971          

Less: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts -                       

104,672           136,971          

6 Creditors and Accrued Expenses 2018 2017

£   £   

Creditors and Accruals 145,702           231,845          

PAYE and National Insurance Due 19,129             19,328            

164,831           251,173          

7 Long Term Liabilities

At the close of business on 31 March 2014, the following loans to the Council were outstanding :

2018 2017

£ £

Public Works Loan Board 213,347 264,870          

CBC-Capital Fund 6,497 6,497              

CBC-Loans Pool 35,806 35,806            

255,650           307,173          

The Council's loans are repayable as follows :

CBC PWLB 2018 2017

Within one year 4,271              21,053              25,324             55,795            

From one to two years 4,271              22,135              26,406             25,324            

From two to five years 10,492            73,026              83,518             79,922            

From five to ten years 8,524              97,133              105,657           119,929          

Over ten years 14,745            -                        14,745             26,203            

Total loan commitment 42,303            213,347            255,650           307,173          

6

Page 100



Leighton-Linslade Town Council

31 March 2018

Notes to the Accounts (Unaudited)

8 Earmarked Reserves Balance Contribution Contribution Balance

1 April 2017 from Reserves

to fund 

Expenditure 31 March 2018

Policy and Finance

Future Capital Projects 639,853            200,000          210,538            629,315           

Budget Contingency 380                   380                   -                       

The White House 14,351              152                   14,199             

Community Policing 1,300                3,000              1,300                3,000               

Cycle Project 10,750              10,750              -                       

Highway Schemes 55,000              10,000            65,000             

Elections 13,018              7,500              20,518             

Staffing Restructure 19,589              19,589             

Professional Fees 20,000            20,000             

754,241            240,500          223,120            771,621           

Grounds and Environmental Services

Budget Contingency 4,387                4,491              4,387                4,491               

Pavilions 15,605              960                   14,645             

Leighton-Linslade in Bloom 7,552                2,900              10,452             

Parks and Tree Works 44,024              1,000              22,420              22,604             

Plant & Vehicle Replacement 38,478              14,047            14,309              38,216             

Cemetery 29,781              49,445            10,342              68,884             

Allotments 4,944                800                 5,744               

Beach Project 8,021                14,701            22,722             

Linslade Rec Improvement 50,000              5,000              8,587                46,413             

Ouzel Valley Maintenance 5,564                5,564               

Sandhills Equipment Maintenance 102,273            -                      15,525              86,748             

Pratts Pit Equipment Maintenance -                        93,020            -                        93,020             

310,629            185,404          76,530              419,503           

Cultural and Economic

Public Conveniences 56,971              3,090                53,881             

Signage 5,000                135                   4,865               

Economic Development 41,708              12,794              28,914             

Budget Contingency 7,369                630                 7,369                630                  

Town Centre Management 12,485              9,652                2,833               

Defibrillators 1,620                975                 2,595               

Community Projects 14,307              13,722            28,029             

Tactic 11,659              7,062              7,392                11,329             

Cultural and Economic Services 40,000              300                   39,700             

Best Bar None 2,500                5,459              7,959               

Christmas 2,134              2,134               

193,619            29,982            40,732              182,869           

Partnership

Community Forum 500                   500                 -                        1,000               

7

Page 101



2017 2018

1 Balances Brought Forward 1,905,730 1,995,808

2 Annual Precept 2,068,093 2,115,211

3 Total Other Receipts 373,684 667,275

4 Staff Costs (1,128,129) (1,150,545)

5 Loan Interest/Capital Repayments (66,963) (65,539)

6 Total Other Payments (1,156,607) (1,428,725)

7 Balances Forward 1,995,808 2,133,485

8 Total Cash and Investments 2,110,010 2,193,645

9 Total Fixed Assets 4,651,993 4,985,917

10 Total Borrowings 307,173 255,650

Leighton Linslade Town Council

Annual Return 31 March 2018

8

Page 102



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 (2)



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 COMMITTEE MINUTES
	180604 G & E draft
	13. Equipment for Grounds and Environmental Services
	180607  Partnership draft
	180613 C+E draft
	180618 Policy & Finance draft
	Information & Data Protection Policy
	ICT Security Policy
	Information Security Incident Policy
	Removable Media Policy
	General Privacy Notice March 2018
	SAR draft procedure
	SAR draft form
	Draft Tree Management Policy 2018-2021
	180620 Planning Draft

	8 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017-2018 AND ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS 2017-2018
	Section 2 - Accounting Statements 2017-18

	9 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
	15 TOWN COUNCIL ACCOMMODATION

